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CH ENERGY GROUP CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME (U NAUDITED) 
(In Thousands)              
                  

        
Three Months Ended 

March 31, 
        2014    2013  
Operating Revenues             
  Electric   $ 174,416   $ 138,163 
  Natural gas     72,433     56,300 
       Total Operating Revenues     246,849     194,463 
Operating Expenses         
  Operation:         
    Purchased electricity and fuel used in electric generation     85,222     50,409 
    Purchased natural gas     38,894     23,399 
    Other expenses of operation - regulated activities     64,892     66,792 
    Other expenses of operation - competitive business subsidiaries     66     348 
  Merger related costs     413     387 
  Depreciation and amortization     10,685     9,955 
  Taxes, other than income tax     15,650     14,856 
       Total Operating Expenses     215,822     166,146 
Operating Income      31,027     28,317 
Other Income and Deductions         
  Income from unconsolidated affiliates     358     199 
  Interest on regulatory assets and other interest income     1,309     1,422 
  Regulatory adjustments for interest costs     315     324 
  Other - net     (209)    4 
       Total Other Income      1,773     1,949 
Interest Charges             
  Interest on long-term debt     5,947     6,430 
  Interest on regulatory liabilities and other interest     2,383     1,915 
       Total Interest Charges     8,330     8,345 
              Income before income taxes, non-controlling interest and 
   preferred dividends of subsidiary     24,470     21,921 

Income Taxes      8,830     7,807 
Net Income from Continuing Operations     15,640     14,114 
Discontinued Operations         
  Income from discontinued operations before tax     6,892     8,190 
  Gain from sale of discontinued operations     8,074     - 
  Income tax expense from discontinued operations     7,263     3,358 
Net Income from Discontinued Operations     7,703     4,832 

Net Income      23,343     18,946 
              
Net Income attributable to non-controlling interest:         

  Dividends declared on Preferred Stock of subsidiary     -     92 

  Preferred Stock Redemption Premium     -     764 
Net Income Attributable to CH Energy Group     23,343     18,090 
              Dividends declared on Common Stock     5,000     8,310 

Change in Retained Earnings   $ 18,343   $ 9,780 
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CH ENERGY GROUP CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHEN SIVE 
INCOME (UNAUDITED) 
(In Thousands)             
                    

          
Three Months Ended 

March 31, 
          2014    2013  

Net Income   $ 23,343   $ 18,946 
                
Other Comprehensive Income:         
                
                

  
Net unrealized gain/(losses) on investments held by equity method investees   
       - net of tax of $0 and $8, respectively.   1  -     (12)

                
Other comprehensive income (loss)     -     (12)
                
Comprehensive Income      23,343     18,934 
                
Comprehensive income attributable to non-controlling interest     -     856 
                
Comprehensive income attributable to CH Energy Group   $ 23,343   $ 18,078 
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CH ENERGY GROUP CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW S 
(UNAUDITED) 
(In Thousands)             

        
Three Months Ended 

March 31, 
        2014    2013  
Operating Activities:             
  Net income   $ 23,343   $ 18,946 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:           
  Depreciation     9,900     9,940 
  Amortization     785     1,247 
  Deferred income taxes - net     (169)    3,156 
  Bad debt expense     1,520     964 
  Undistributed equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates     (109)    (199)
  Pension expense     6,020     6,022 
  Other post-employment benefits ("OPEB") expense     1,988     1,989 
  Revenue decoupling mechanism recorded     9,133     4,203 
  Regulatory asset amortization     1,682     1,682 
  Regulatory asset storm deferral adjustment     -     4,000 
  Gain on sale of assets     (8,073)    (22)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities - net:           
  Accounts receivable, unbilled revenues and other receivables     (61,117)    (28,872)
  Fuel, materials and supplies     4,790     6,842 
  Special deposits and prepayments     (2,814)    (5,100)
  Income and other taxes     13,978     5,657 
  Accounts payable     161     (3,369)
  Accrued interest     2,430     2,944 
  Customer advances     (11,023)    (12,587)
  Pension plan contribution     (16,565)    (26,165)
  OPEB contribution     (2,238)    - 
  Revenue decoupling mechanism collected     (1,569)    1,485 
  Regulatory asset - storm deferral     -     (2,813)
  Regulatory asset - manufactured gas plant ("MGP") site remediation     1,001     (2,214)
  Regulatory asset - Temporary State Assessment     (2,451)    (2,526)
  Deferred natural gas and electric costs     (14,340)    (4,376)
  Other - net     8,046     14,231 
Net cash used in operating activities     (35,691)    (4,935)
Investing Activities:             
  Proceeds from sale of assets     95,281     26 
  Additions to utility and other property and plant     (19,297)    (32,703)
  Other - net     220     4,263 
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities     76,204     (28,414)
Financing Activities:         
  Redemption of long-term debt     (7,000)    - 
  Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt     30,000     - 
  Borrowings of short-term debt - net     10,000     36,500 
  Dividends paid on Common Stock     (5,000)    (8,301)
  Redemption of Preferred Stock     -     (9,625)
  Dividends paid on Preferred Stock of subsidiary     -     (92)
  Other - net     42     (95)
Net cash provided by financing activities     28,042     18,387 
Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents     68,555     (14,962)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Period     20,570     30,508 
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Period   $ 89,125   $ 15,546 
                  Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information:         
  Interest paid   $ 3,734   $ 3,667 
  Federal and state income taxes paid   $ 1,775   $ - 
  Additions to plant included in liabilities   $ 3,204   $ 3,783 



  

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part hereof. 
 

- 4 - 
 

CH ENERGY GROUP CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (UNAUDIT ED) 
(In Thousands)                    
                          
          March 31,   December 31,   March 31, 

    2014    2013    2013  
ASSETS               

Utility Plant                   
  Electric   $ 1,127,608   $ 1,118,552   $ 1,074,858 
  Natural gas     359,363     356,627     326,061 
  Common     175,530     174,898     163,993 
    Gross Utility Plant     1,662,501     1,650,077     1,564,912 
                    
  Less: Accumulated depreciation     441,751     434,410     420,696 
    Net     1,220,750     1,215,667     1,144,216 
                      Construction work in progress     42,231     41,862     61,367 
    Net Utility Plant     1,262,981     1,257,529     1,205,583 
                    Non-Utility Property & Plant             
  Griffith non-utility property & plant     -     -     33,808 
  Other non-utility property & plant     524     524     524 
    Gross Non-Utility Property & Plant     524     524     34,332 
                    
  Less:  Accumulated depreciation - Griffith     -     -     23,223 
    Net Non-Utility Property & Plant     524     524     11,109 
                    
Current Assets             
  Cash and cash equivalents     89,125     18,113     15,546 

  
Accounts receivable from customers - net of allowance for doubtful  
   accounts of $4.0 million, $3.9 million and $6.0 million, respectively      108,832     66,123     120,237 

  Accounts receivable - affiliates     -     151     - 
  Accrued unbilled utility revenues     17,615     17,210     16,428 
  Other receivables     3,880     5,583     8,331 
  Fuel, materials and supplies     13,965     18,632     17,654 
  Regulatory assets      50,210     37,626     36,396 
  Income tax receivable     -     808     - 
  Fair value of derivative instruments     16,383     8,789     2,947 
  Unamortized debt expense     331     334     428 
  Special deposits and prepayments     23,930     20,531     26,559 
  Assets held for sale     -     105,151     - 
  Accumulated deferred income tax      5,580     12,941     8,182 
    Total Current Assets     329,851     311,992     252,708 
                    Deferred Charges and Other Assets             
  Regulatory assets - pension plan      44,162     50,577     140,349 
  Regulatory assets - other     137,588     125,669     109,710 
  Fair value of derivative instruments     4,042     1,433     2,881 
  Goodwill     -     -     38,981 
  Other intangible assets - net     -     -     11,663 
  Unamortized debt expense     3,822     3,904     4,682 
  Investments in unconsolidated affiliates     2,150     2,082     2,241 
  Other investments     27,219     26,855     18,240 
  Other     3,579     3,769     5,478 
    Total Deferred Charges and Other Assets     222,562     214,289     334,225 
      Total Assets   $ 1,815,918   $ 1,784,334   $ 1,803,625 
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CH ENERGY GROUP CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (CONT'D)  
(UNAUDITED)  
(In Thousands, except share amounts)                   
                          
          March 31,   December 31,   March 31, 

    2014    2013    2013  
CAPITALIZATION AND LIABILITIES                

Capitalization                   
  CH Energy Group Common Shareholders' Equity                   

  

Common Stock (30,000,000 shares authorized: $0.10 par value; 
   16,862,087 shares issued), N/A, N/A and 14,960,976 shares  
    outstanding, respectively   $ -   $ -   $ 1,686 

  

Common Stock (30,000,000 shares authorized: $0.01 par value; 
   15,961,400 shares issued) 15,961,400, 15,961,400 and N/A shares 
    outstanding, respectively     160     160     - 

  Paid-in capital     325,906     325,906     349,514 
  Retained earnings     256,462     238,119     257,883 

  Treasury stock - N/A, N/A and 1,901,111 shares     -     -     (89,891)
  Accumulated other comprehensive income     504     504     368 
    Total Equity     583,032     564,689     519,560 

  Long-term debt     525,275     495,275     479,926 
    Total Capitalization     1,108,307     1,059,964     999,486 
Current Liabilities             
  Current maturities of long-term debt     14,650     21,650     38,076 
  Notes payable     10,000     -     56,990 
  Accounts payable     25,715     31,420     39,155 
  Accounts payable - affiliates     105     -     - 
  Accrued interest     8,324     5,894     8,875 
  Dividends payable     -     -     8,310 
  Accrued vacation and payroll     6,623     6,773     8,187 
  Customer advances     6,540     15,001     15,722 
  Customer deposits     6,886     6,818     7,115 
  Regulatory liabilities     34,776     22,891     15,799 
  Fair value of derivative instruments     127     46     520 
  Accrued environmental remediation costs     1,540     1,233     4,267 
  Accrued income and other taxes     18,622     -     6,146 
  Deferred revenues     -     -     3,936 
  Liabilities held for sale     -     29,883     - 
  Other     9,999     12,200     20,180 
    Total Current Liabilities     143,907     153,809     233,278 
Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities             
  Regulatory liabilities - OPEB      52,704     51,590     9,696 
  Regulatory liabilities - other     161,991     142,931     108,704 
  Operating reserves     3,194     2,426     3,456 
  Fair value of derivative instruments     -     -     93 
  Accrued environmental remediation costs     47,932     39,569     8,250 
  Accrued OPEB costs     16,771     18,036     58,730 
  Accrued pension costs     1,377     17,497     88,170 
  Tax reserve     2,289     2,539     2,047 
  Other     18,286     19,312     21,028 
    Total Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities     304,544     293,900     300,174 
Accumulated Deferred Income Tax      259,160     276,661     270,687 
Commitments and Contingencies              
      Total Capitalization and Liabilities   $ 1,815,918   $ 1,784,334   $ 1,803,625 



  

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part hereof. 
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CH ENERGY GROUP CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF EQUITY (U NAUDITED) 
(In Thousands, except share amounts)                                           
                                        
        CH Energy Group Common Shareholders             

        Common Stock   Treasury Stock                                    

        Shares Issued    Amount  

Shares 
(Repurchased) / 

Issued    Amount     
Paid-In 
Capital     

Capital 
Stock 

Expense    
Retained 
Earnings    

Accumulated 
Other 

Comprehensive 
Income / (Loss)     

Non-
controlling 

Interest    
Total 
Equity 

Balance at December 31, 2012    16,862,087  $ 1,686 (1,907,203) $ (90,141) $ 349,428   $ (166)  $ 248,103   $ 380 $  -   $ 509,290 
Comprehensive income:                              
  Net income                  18,946         18,946 

  Preferred Stock Redemption          (28)    166     (764)        (626)

  
Dividends declared on Preferred 
   Stock of subsidiary                  (92)        (92)

  Change in fair value:                          
    Investments                      (12)         (12)
Dividends declared on common stock                  (8,310)            (8,310)
Treasury shares activity - net      6,092   250   114                     364 

Balance at March 31, 2013    16,862,087  $ 1,686 (1,901,111) $ (89,891) $ 349,514   $ -   $ 257,883   $ 368 $ - $ 519,560 
                               

Balance at December 31, 2013    15,961,400  $ 160 - $ - $ 325,906   $ -   $ 238,119   $ 504 $ - $ 564,689 

Comprehensive income:                              
  Net income                  23,343         23,343 
Dividends declared on common stock                  (5,000)            (5,000)

Balance at March 31, 2014    15,961,400  $ 160 - $ - $ 325,906   $ -   $ 256,462   $ 504 $ - $ 583,032 



  

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part hereof. 
 

- 7 - 
 

CENTRAL HUDSON STATEMENT OF INCOME (UNAUDITED)  
(In Thousands)           
                

      
Three Months Ended 

March 31, 

      2014    2013  

Operating Revenues           

  Electric $ 174,416   $ 138,163 

  Natural gas   72,433     56,300 

    Total Operating Revenues   246,849     194,463 
            
Operating Expenses       

  Operation:       

    Purchased electricity and fuel used in electric generation   85,222     50,409 

    Purchased natural gas   38,894     23,399 

    Other expenses of operation   64,892     66,792 

  Depreciation and amortization   10,685     9,955 

  Taxes, other than income tax   15,327     14,750 

    Total Operating Expenses   215,020     165,305 
                
Operating Income   31,829     29,158 
            
Other Income and Deductions       

  Interest on regulatory assets and other interest income   1,298     1,373 

  Regulatory adjustments for interest costs   315     324 

  Other - net   58     99 

    Total Other Income   1,671     1,796 
            
Interest Charges           

  Interest on long-term debt   5,492     5,956 

  Interest on regulatory liabilities and other interest   2,378     1,845 

    Total Interest Charges   7,870     7,801 
                
Income Before Income Taxes   25,630     23,153 
                
Income Taxes   9,378     8,784 
                
Net Income   16,252     14,369 
                
Preferred Stock Redemption Premium   -     764 

Dividends Declared on Cumulative Preferred Stock   -     92 
                
Income Available for Common Stock $ 16,252   $ 13,513 

 
 
 
 
 



  

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part hereof. 
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CENTRAL HUDSON STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
(UNAUDITED) 
(In Thousands)             
          

        
Three Months Ended 

March 31, 
        2014    2013  
Net Income    $ 16,252   $ 14,369 
Other Comprehensive Income 1   -     - 
Comprehensive Income    $ 16,252   $ 14,369 
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CENTRAL HUDSON STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (UNAUDITED)  
(In Thousands)             
                  

        
Three Months Ended 

March 31, 
        2014    2013  
Operating Activities:             
  Net income   $ 16,252   $ 14,369 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:           
  Depreciation     9,900     9,369 
  Amortization     785     586 
  Deferred income taxes - net     (7)    3,466 
  Bad debt expense     1,520     589 
  Pension expense     6,020     6,022 
  OPEB expense     1,988     1,989 
  Revenue decoupling mechanism recorded     9,133     4,203 
  Regulatory asset amortization     1,682     1,682 
  Regulatory asset energy efficiency incentives     -     4,000 
Changes in operating assets and liabilities - net:         
  Accounts receivable, unbilled revenues and other receivables     (44,865)    (17,846)
  Fuel, materials and supplies     4,667     5,069 
  Special deposits and prepayments     (3,402)    (3,926)
  Income and other taxes     9,589     5,492 
  Accounts payable     (2,825)    (5,075)
  Accrued interest     1,975     2,466 
  Customer advances     (8,461)    (7,841)
  Pension plan contribution     (16,565)    (26,165)
  OPEB contribution     (2,238)    - 
  Revenue decoupling mechanism collected (refunded)     (1,569)    1,485 
  Regulatory asset - storm deferral     -     (2,813)
  Regulatory asset - MGP site remediation     1,001     (2,214)
  Regulatory asset - Temporary State Assessment     (2,451)    (2,526)
  Deferred natural gas and electric costs     (14,340)    (4,376)
  Other - net     5,175     10,909 
Net cash used in operating activities     (27,036)    (1,086)
                  
Investing Activities:             
  Additions to utility plant     (19,167)    (32,115)
  Other - net     224     3,817 
Net cash used in investing activities     (18,943)    (28,298)
              
Financing Activities:         
  Redemption of long-term debt     (7,000)    - 
  Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt     30,000     - 
  Borrowings of short-term debt - net     18,000     27,000 
  Redemption of Preferred Stock     -     (9,653)
  Dividends paid to parent - CH Energy Group     (5,000)    (5,000)
  Dividends paid on cumulative Preferred Stock     -     (92)
  Other - net     -     (108)
Net cash provided by financing activities     36,000     12,147 
              
Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents     (9,979)    (17,237)
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Period     14,379     24,352 
Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of Period   $ 4,400   $ 7,115 
              Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information:         
  Interest paid   $ 3,734   $ 3,601 
  Federal and state income taxes paid   $ - 1 $ - 
  Additions to plant included in liabilities   $ 3,204   $ 3,783 



  

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part hereof. 
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CENTRAL HUDSON BALANCE SHEET (UNAUDITED)  
(In Thousands)                   
                          
          March 31,   December 31,   March 31, 

    2014    2013    2013  
ASSETS               

Utility Plant                   
  Electric   $ 1,127,608   $ 1,118,552   $ 1,074,858 
  Natural gas     359,363     356,627     326,061 
  Common     175,530     174,898     163,993 
    Gross Utility Plant     1,662,501     1,650,077     1,564,912 
                    
  Less: Accumulated depreciation     441,751     434,410     420,696 
    Net     1,220,750     1,215,667     1,144,216 
                    
  Construction work in progress     42,231     41,862     61,367 
    Net Utility Plant     1,262,981     1,257,529     1,205,583 
                    
Non-Utility Property and Plant     524     524     524 
       Net Non-Utility Property and Plant     524     524     524 
                    
Current Assets             
  Cash and cash equivalents     4,400     14,379     7,115 

  

Accounts receivable from customers - net of allowance for 
   doubtful accounts of $4.0 million and $3.9 million and $4.2                                                                  
million, respectively     108,832     66,123     77,609 

  Accrued unbilled utility revenues     17,615     17,210     16,428 
  Other receivables     3,158     3,827     4,630 
  Fuel, materials and supplies - at average cost     13,965     18,632     14,194 
  Regulatory assets     50,210     37,626     36,396 
  Income tax receivable     -     4,379     - 
  Fair value of derivative instruments     16,383     8,789     2,944 
  Unamortized debt expense     331     334     428 
  Special deposits and prepayments     23,862     20,460     22,496 
  Accumulated deferred income tax     -     3,280     1,256 
    Total Current Assets     238,756     195,039     183,496 
                    
Deferred Charges and Other Assets             
  Regulatory assets - pension plan     44,162     50,577     140,349 
  Regulatory assets - other     137,588     125,669     109,710 
  Fair value of derivative instruments     4,042     1,433     2,881 
  Unamortized debt expense     3,822     3,904     4,682 
  Other investments     26,427     26,067     17,743 
  Other     2,860     3,012     2,734 
    Total Deferred Charges and Other Assets     218,901     210,662     278,099 
                    
      Total Assets   $ 1,721,162   $ 1,663,754   $ 1,667,702 
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CENTRAL HUDSON BALANCE SHEET (CONT'D) (UNAUDITED)  
(In Thousands, except share amounts)                   
                          

          March 31,   December 31,   March 31, 
    2014    2013    2013  

CAPITALIZATION AND LIABILITIES                
Capitalization                   

  
Common Stock (30,000,000 shares authorized: $5 par value;  
   16,862,087 shares issued and outstanding)   $ 84,311   $ 84,311   $ 84,311 

  Paid-in capital     239,952     239,952     199,952 
  Retained earnings     198,864     187,612     198,682 
  Capital stock expense     (4,633)    (4,633)    (4,633)
    Total Equity     518,494     507,242     478,312 
                    
                    
  Long-term debt     505,950     475,950     452,950 
    Total Capitalization     1,024,444     983,192     931,262 
                    Current Liabilities             
  Current maturities of long-term debt     7,000     14,000     37,000 
  Notes payable     18,000     -     27,000 
  Accounts payable     23,980     29,886     29,639 
  Accrued interest     7,724     5,750     8,249 
  Accrued vacation and payroll     6,623     6,773     6,424 
  Customer advances     6,540     15,001     10,243 
  Customer deposits     6,886     6,818     7,042 
  Regulatory liabilities     34,776     22,891     15,799 
  Fair value of derivative instruments     127     46     520 
  Accrued environmental remediation costs     1,340     1,233     3,838 
  Accrued income and other taxes     5,211     -     8,635 
  Accumulated deferred income tax     221     -     - 
  Other     9,152     12,027     14,549 
    Total Current Liabilities     127,580     114,425     168,938 
                    Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities             
  Regulatory liabilities - OPEB     52,704     51,590     9,696 
  Regulatory liabilities - other     161,991     142,931     108,704 
  Operating reserves     3,194     2,426     2,647 
  Fair value of derivative instruments     -     -     93 
  Accrued environmental remediation costs     47,832     39,569     7,240 
  Accrued OPEB costs     16,771     18,036     58,730 
  Accrued pension costs     1,377     17,497     88,170 
  Tax reserve     2,289     2,539     2,047 
  Other     17,327     18,373     20,071 
    Total Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities     303,485     292,961     297,398 
                    Accumulated Deferred Income Tax     265,653     273,176     270,104 
                    Commitments and Contingencies             
                    
      Total Capitalization and Liabilities   $ 1,721,162   $ 1,663,754   $ 1,667,702 
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CENTRAL HUDSON STATEMENT OF EQUITY (UNAUDITED)            
(In Thousands, except share amounts)                                   
                                                      
        Central Hudson Common Shareholders       
        Common Stock   Treasury Stock                             

        
Shares 
Issued    Amount  

Shares 
Repurchased    Amount    

Paid-In 
Capital    

Capital 
Stock 

Expense    
Retained 
Earnings    

Accumulated 
Other 

Comprehensive 
Income / (Loss)    

Total 
Equity 

Balance at December 31, 2012    16,862,087 $ 84,311 - $ - $ 199,980 $ (4,799) $ 190,169   $ - $ 469,661 
Net income              14,369       14,369 
Preferred Stock Redemption         (28)   166    (764)      (626)
Dividends declared:                    
  On cumulative Preferred Stock              (92)      (92)

  
On Common Stock to parent -                
   CH Energy Group              (5,000)      (5,000)

Balance at March 31, 2013    16,862,087 $ 84,311 - $ - $ 199,952 $ (4,633) $ 198,682   $ - $ 478,312 
                     
Balance at December 31, 2013    16,862,087 $ 84,311 - $ - $ 239,952 $ (4,633) $ 187,612   $ - $ 507,242 

Net income              16,252       16,252 
Dividends declared:                    

  
On Common Stock to parent -                
   CH Energy Group              (5,000)      (5,000)

Balance at March 31, 2014    16,862,087 $ 84,311 - $ - $ 239,952 $ (4,633) $ 198,864   $ - $ 518,494 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED) 
 
NOTE 1 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies  
 
Corporate Structure 
 
CH Energy Group is the holding company parent corporation of two principal, wholly 
owned subsidiaries, Central Hudson Gas & Electric Corporation (“Central Hudson”) and 
Central Hudson Enterprises Corporation (“CHEC”).  Effective as of June 27, 2013, all of 
CH Energy Group’s common stock is indirectly owned by Fortis Inc. (“Fortis”), which is 
the largest investor-owned gas and electric distribution utility in Canada.  Central 
Hudson is a regulated electric and natural gas subsidiary.  CHEC, the parent company 
of CH Energy Group’s non-regulated businesses and investments, had one wholly 
owned subsidiary, Griffith Energy Services, Inc. (“Griffith”).  On March 4, 2014, CHEC 
completed the sale of Griffith to Star Gas Partners, L.P.  Therefore, operating results of 
Griffith are reported as Discontinued Operations for all periods presented in the 
Consolidated CH Energy Group Statement of Income and as held for sale in the 
Consolidated CH Energy Group Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2013.  See Note 5 – 
“Acquisitions, Divestitures and Investments” for further information.  CHEC also has 
ownership interests in certain subsidiaries that are less than 100% owned. 
 
Basis of Presentation 

 
This Quarterly Financial Report is a combined report of CH Energy Group and Central 
Hudson.  The Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements apply to both CH Energy 
Group and Central Hudson.  CH Energy Group’s Consolidated Financial Statements 
include the accounts of CH Energy Group and its wholly owned subsidiaries, which 
include Central Hudson and CHEC.  Inter-company balances and transactions have 
been eliminated in consolidation.   
 
CHEC’s investments in limited partnerships (“Partnerships”) and limited liability 
companies are accounted for under the equity method.  CH Energy Group’s 
proportionate share of the change in fair value of available for sale securities held by the 
Partnerships is recorded in CH Energy Group’s Consolidated Statement of 
Comprehensive Income.   
 
The Financial Statements were prepared in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP”), which for regulated public 
utilities, includes specific accounting guidance for regulated operations.  For additional 
information regarding regulatory accounting, see Note 2 – “Regulatory Matters.” 
 
Unaudited Financial Statements   

 
The accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements of CH Energy Group and 
Financial Statements of Central Hudson are unaudited but, in the opinion of 
management, reflect adjustments (which include normal recurring adjustments) 
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necessary for a fair statement of the results for the interim periods presented.  These 
unaudited quarterly Financial Statements do not contain all footnote disclosures 
concerning accounting policies and other matters which would be included in annual 
audited Financial Statements and, accordingly, should be read in conjunction with the 
audited Financial Statements (including the Notes thereto) included in the combined CH 
Energy Group/Central Hudson Annual Report for the year ended December 31, 2013. 
 
The balance sheets of CH Energy Group and Central Hudson as of March 31, 2013 are 
included for supplemental analysis purposes. 
 
Reclassification  
 
Certain amounts in the 2013 Financial Statements have been reclassified to conform to 
the 2014 presentation.  For more information regarding reclassification of discontinued 
operations, see Note 5 – “Acquisitions, Divestitures and Investments.”   
 
 
Revenue Recognition 
 
CH Energy Group’s deferred revenue balances as of December 31, 2013 and March 
31, 2013 were $4.8 million and $3.9 million, respectively.  The December 31, 2013 
balance was included in held for sale. There was no deferred revenue balance as of 
March 31, 2014 as a result of the sale of Griffith on March 4, 2014.   
 
As required by the PSC, Central Hudson records gross receipts tax revenues and 
expenses on a gross income statement presentation basis (i.e., included in both 
revenue and expenses).  Sales and use taxes for Central Hudson are accounted for on 
a net basis (excluded from revenue).   
 
Fuel, Materials & Supplies                          
                                        
The following is a summary of CH Energy Group’s and Central Hudson’s inventories (In 
Thousands): 
                                        
    CH Energy Group   Central Hudson 
      March 31,   December 31,   March 31,   March 31,   December 31,   March 31, 
      2014    2013    2013    2014    2013    2013  
Natural gas   $ 2,641  $ 8,078 $ 2,759   $ 2,641 $ 8,078 $ 2,759 
Petroleum products 
   and propane (1)   -    -   2,098     -   -   - 
Fuel used in electric 
   generation     425     430   293     425   430   293 
Materials and supplies (1)   10,899     10,124   12,504     10,899   10,124   11,142 
  Total   $ 13,965  $ 18,632 $ 17,654   $ 13,965 $ 18,632 $ 14,194 
 
(1) 

 
Petroleum products and propane of $3,857 and materials and supplies of $1,493 related to Griffith have been excluded from the CH 
Energy Group December 31, 2013 balances and designated as Assets held for sale under current accounting guidance in the CH 
Energy Group Consolidated Balance Sheet.   For further details, see Note 5 - "Acquisitions, Divestitures and Investments." 
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Depreciation and Amortization 
 
Current accounting guidance related to asset retirements precludes the recognition of 
expected future retirement obligations as a component of depreciation expense or 
accumulated depreciation.  Central Hudson, however, is required to use depreciation 
methods and rates approved by the PSC under regulatory accounting.  These 
depreciation rates include a charge for the cost of future removal and retirement of fixed 
assets.  In accordance with current accounting guidance for regulated operations, 
Central Hudson continues to accrue for the future cost of removal for its rate-regulated 
natural gas and electric utility assets.  In accordance with current accounting guidance 
related to asset retirements, Central Hudson has classified $47.5 million, $46.7 million, 
and $44.8 million of cost of removal as regulatory liabilities as of March 31, 2014, 
December 31, 2013, and March 31, 2013, respectively.  This liability represents the 
portion of the cost of removal charge in excess of the amount reported as an Asset 
Retirement Obligation under GAAP.  
 
See Note 6 - “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets” for further discussion of 
amortization of intangibles (other than goodwill). 
 
Earnings Per Share  

 
On June 27, 2013, at the effective time of the completion of the Fortis transaction, all 
issued and outstanding and treasury shares of CH Energy Group common stock were 
cancelled and ceased to exist.  In addition, all unvested equity awards outstanding 
immediately prior to the effective time of the transaction became vested, and all 
outstanding equity awards were cancelled in exchange for the right to receive a cash 
payment equal to $65 per share.  There are no equity awards outstanding as of March 
31, 2014. 
 
In the calculation of earnings per share for the quarter ended March 31, 2013 (basic and 
diluted) of CH Energy Group’s Common Stock, earnings for CH Energy Group are 
reduced by the Preferred Stock dividends paid by Central Hudson. 

 
The average dilutive effect of CH Energy Group’s stock options, performance shares 
and restricted shares are as follows:  
 
    Three Months Ended 
    March 31, 
    2014   2013 
Shares   NA   213,908  
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Parental Guarantees   
 
As a result of the sale of Griffith by CHEC on March 4, 2014, there are no parental 
guarantees outstanding as of March 31, 2014. 
 
Common Stock Dividends 
 
CH Energy Group’s ability to pay dividends is affected by the ability of its subsidiaries to 
pay dividends.  The Federal Power Act limits the payment of dividends by Central 
Hudson to its retained earnings.  More restrictive is the PSC’s limit on the dividends 
Central Hudson may pay to CH Energy Group which is 100% of the average annual 
income available for common stock, calculated on a two-year rolling average basis.  
Based on this calculation, Central Hudson is currently restricted to a maximum annual 
payment of $32.4 million in dividends to CH Energy Group.  Central Hudson’s dividend 
would be reduced to 75% of its average annual income in the event of a downgrade of 
its senior debt rating below “BBB+” by more than one rating agency if the stated reason 
for the downgrade is related to any of CH Energy Group’s or Central Hudson’s affiliates.  
Further restrictions are imposed for any downgrades below this level.  In addition, 
Central Hudson would not be allowed to pay dividends if its average common equity 
ratio for the 13 months prior to the proposed dividend were more than 200 basis points 
below the ratio used in setting rates.    
 
During the three months ended March 31, 2014, the Board of Directors of Central 
Hudson authorized and Central Hudson paid dividends of $5.0 million to parent CH 
Energy Group.  CH Energy Group’s other subsidiaries do not have express restrictions 
on their ability to pay dividends.   
 
See Note 8 - “Capitalization-Common and Preferred Stock” for information regarding 
dividends declared in 2013. 
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NOTE 2 – Regulatory Matters  
 

Summary of Regulatory Assets and Liabilities        
                        The following table sets forth Central Hudson’s regulatory assets and liabilities 
(In Thousands): 
                                  March 31,   December 31,   March 31, 
  2014    2013    2013  
Regulatory Assets (Debits):               
  Current:               
    Deferred purchased electric and natural gas costs (Note 1) $ 35,433   $ 21,093   $ 15,743 
    Deferred unrealized losses on derivatives - Electric (Note 14)   127     -     516 
    Deferred unrealized losses on derivatives - Gas (Note 14)   -     46     4 

    
PSC General and Temporary State Assessment 
   and carrying charges   6,452     3,962     8,854 

    RDM and carrying charges - Electric   -     2,451     1,228 
    Residual natural gas deferred balances   2,899     4,554     4,554 
    Deferred debt expense on re-acquired debt   590     625     601 

    
Deferred and accrued costs - MGP site remediation 
   and carrying charges (Note 12)   4,605     4,605     4,605 

    Other   104     290     291 
            50,210     37,626     36,396 
  Long-term:               
    Deferred pension costs (Note 10)   44,162     50,577     140,349 
    Deferred unrealized losses on derivatives - Electric (Note 14)   -     -     93 
    Carrying charges - pension reserve   14,272     13,264     10,303 

    
Deferred and accrued costs - MGP site remediation 
   and carrying charges (Note 12)   46,576     39,233     10,109 

    Deferred debt expense on re-acquired debt   4,848     4,978     4,586 
    Deferred Medicare Subsidy taxes   8,548     8,400     7,933 
    Residual natural gas deferred balances and carrying charges   1,067     1,060     3,809 
    Income taxes recoverable through future rates   40,566     37,223     37,119 
    Energy efficiency incentives   2,719     2,719     2,719 
    Deferred storm costs and carrying charges   -     -     19,717 
    Other   18,992     18,792     13,322 
            181,750     176,246     250,059 
      Total Regulatory Assets $ 231,960   $ 213,872   $ 286,455 

Regulatory Liabilities (Credits):               
  Current:               
    RDM and carrying charges - Electric $ 2,644   $ -   $ - 
    RDM and carrying charges - Gas   6,369     3,888     3,558 
    Deferred unrealized gains on derivatives - Electric (Note 14)   16,383     8,465     2,941 
    Deferred unrealized gains on derivatives - Gas (Note 14)   -     324     3 
    Income taxes refundable through future rates   4,275     4,209     4,431 
    Deferred unbilled gas revenues (Note 1)   5,105     6,005     4,866 
            34,776     22,891     15,799 
  Long-term:               
    Customer benefit fund   6,536     6,505     2,419 
    Deferred cost of removal (Note 1)   47,513     46,655     44,795 
    Rate Base impact of tax repair project and carrying charges   12,409     12,336     9,159 
    Excess electric depreciation reserve carrying charges   1,586     1,586     1,586 
    Deferred unrealized gains on derivatives - Electric (Note 14)   4,042     1,433     2,881 
    Income taxes refundable through future rates   35,036     27,484     24,194 
    Deferred OPEB costs (Note 10)   52,704     51,590     9,696 
    Carrying charges - OPEB reserve   16,583     15,197     11,222 
    PBA - Electric and carrying charges   12,433     12,242     - 
    PBA - Gas and carrying charges   3,154     3,105     - 
    Other   22,699     16,388     12,448 
            214,695     194,521     118,400 
      Total Regulatory Liabilities $ 249,471   $ 217,412   $ 134,199 
                                Net Regulatory Assets/(Liabilities) $ (17,511)  $ (3,540)  $ 152,256 
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2010 Rate Order and 2013 Joint Petition 
 

From July 1, 2010 through June 30, 2013, Central Hudson operated under the terms of 
the 2010 Rate Order. On June 26, 2013 the PSC issued its Order Authorizing 
Acquisition Subject to Conditions in Case 12-M-0192 (the “2013 Joint Petition”), which 
was accepted on June 27, 2013. The Order adopted the terms of the Joint Proposal 
dated January 25, 2013 for the acquisition of CH Energy Group, owner of Central 
Hudson, by Fortis along with additional commitments by the companies to enhance 
financial protection for ratepayers and other community and economic development 
benefits.  A summary of the key terms of the 2010 Order and the 2013 Joint Petition are 
as follows: 
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(1) ROE > 10.5%, 50% to customers, > 11.0%, 80% to customers, > 11.5%, 90% to customers. 
(2) Electric is based on revenue dollars; gas is based on usage per customer. 
(3) Deferral authorization in RY2 and RY3 only. 
(4) Legislative, governmental or regulatory actions with individual impacts greater than or equal to 2% of net income of the 

applicable department. 
(5) The Company’s pre-tax gain or loss limited to $0.8 million per rate year. 
(6) There is a rate freeze on Central Hudson electric and gas delivery rates through July 1, 2015. 
(7) ROE > 10.0% and up to 10.5%, 50% to customers, > 10.5%, 90% to customers. 
(8) To cover expenses normally required by rate payers, such as storm restoration costs and for economic development and low-

income customer assistance programs.  
(9) Guaranteed annual synergy savings of $1.85 million to ratepayers for 5 years. 
(10) There were no new deferrals granted in the 2013 Joint Petition. 

 
Other PSC Proceedings  
 
On October 29, 2012, Central Hudson’s service territory was impacted by Superstorm 
Sandy, and approximately 103,000 electric customers were affected.  On April 2, 2014 
the PSC issued an Order authorizing deferral of $9.965 million of the Sandy incremental 
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storm restoration expenses, with carrying charges which had been deferred on Central 
Hudson’s books. 
 
On April 22, 2013, the PSC issued Orders approving deferral of $8.9 million and 
denying deferral of $3.7 million of the incremental electric storm restoration expense 
related to Tropical Storm Irene and the October snowstorm, respectively.  On May 22, 
2013, Central Hudson filed a petition for reconsideration and rehearing on these Orders 
challenging the exclusion of Central Hudson’s normalization adjustments used to 
measure earnings and seeking recovery of $3.7 million that was denied.  On April 2, 
2014 the Commission issued an Order affirming the previous Irene and October 
snowstorm PSC Orders and denying Central Hudson’s rehearing petitions.  
 
Other Regulatory Matters 
 
Unbilled Electric Revenues 
 
Pursuant to regulatory requirements, a portion of unbilled electric revenues  is not 
recorded.  The amount not recorded as of March 31, 2014, December 31, 2013 and 
March 31, 2013, which would have been reflected as an increase to receivables and 
regulatory liabilities if recorded, was $11.6 million, $13.0 million and $11.5 million, 
respectively. 
 

NOTE 3 - New Accounting Guidance  
                        
Newly adopted and soon to be adopted accounting guidance is summarized below, 
including explanations for any new guidance issued in 2014 (except that which is not 
currently applicable) and the expected impact on CH Energy Group and its subsidiaries. 
                        

Impact  Category   
Accounting 
Reference  Title  

Issued 
Date   

Effective 
Date 

                        1  

 

Income Taxes (Topic 
740) 

  

ASU No. 2013-11   Presentation of an 
Unrecognized Tax Benefit 
When a Net Operating Loss 
Carryforward, a Similar Tax 
Loss, or a Tax Credit 
Carryforward Exists 

 

Jul-13   Jan-14 

                      Impact Key:                 
  (1) No current impact on the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of CH Energy Group and its subsidiaries 

when adopted on the effective date noted. Additional disclosures have been added or presentation of information modified 
where required. 
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NOTE 4 – Income Tax 
 

In September of 2010, Central Hudson filed a request with the Internal Revenue Service 
(“IRS”) to change the Company’s tax accounting method related to costs to repair and 
maintain utility assets.  The change was effective for the tax year ending December 31, 
2009.  This change allows Central Hudson to take a current tax deduction for a 
significant amount of repair costs that were previously capitalized for tax purposes. 
 
In September 2012, Central Hudson filed corporate income tax returns for the year 
ended December 31, 2011.  With that filing, Central Hudson included an election to 
adopt the provisions of Revenue Procedure 2011-43 (“Rev Proc”), which provided IRS 
guidance related to the repair deduction previously taken on electric transmission and 
distribution property.  As such, tax reserves related to the electric transmission and 
distribution repair deductions, which were established prior to issuance of the Rev Proc 
were reclassified to deferred tax liability accounts.  

 
IRS guidance with respect to repairs taken on Gas Transmission and Distribution 
repairs is still pending. Therefore, remaining reserves related to the gas repair 
deduction continue to be shown as “Tax Reserve” under the Deferred Credits and Other 
Liabilities section of the Central Hudson Balance Sheet.  
 
 
Other than the uncertain tax position related to Central Hudson’s accounting method 
change for gas transmission and distribution repairs, there are no other uncertain tax 
positions.  Increases to the tax reserve during 2013 and 2014 reflect the ongoing 
uncertainty related to Gas Transmission and Distribution repair deductions.  The 
following is a summary of activity related to uncertain tax positions (In Thousands):  
              

    
Three Months Ended 

March 31,  
    2014    2013  
Tax reserve balance at the beginning of the period 1 $ 2,539   $ 2,000 
Adjustments related to tax accounting method change     75     47 
Tax reserve balance at the end of the period   $ 2,614   $ 2,047 

 
Jurisdiction  Tax Years Open for Audit 
Federal(1)  2011 – 2013 
New York State(2)  2010 - 2013 
 
(1)   Completed audit adjustments for the years 2007-2010 were received from IRS Appeals on December 23, 2013; adjustments 
are pending final approval by IRS Joint Committee.  
(2)   The NY State Department of Taxation and Finance has served notice that the company has been selected for an income tax 
audit for the years 2010-2012.  The audit is scheduled to commence in June.   
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Reconciliation - CH Energy Group                    
                      
The following is a reconciliation between the amount of federal income tax computed on 
income before taxes at the statutory rate and the amount reported in CH Energy Group’s 
Consolidated Statement of Income (In Thousands):  
                      

        
Three Months Ended 

 March 31, 
        2014      2013    
Net income attributable to CH Energy Group Continuing Operations    $ 15,640   $ 13,258 
Preferred Stock dividends of Central Hudson      -     92 
Preferred Stock Redemption Premium      -     764 
Federal income tax      8,353     4,783 
State income tax      646     - 
Deferred federal income tax      (288)     2,833 
Deferred state income tax      119     191 
  Income before taxes    $ 24,470   $ 21,921 
             
Computed federal tax at 35% statutory rate    $ 8,565   $ 7,672 
State income tax net of federal tax benefit      1,575     440 
State income tax rate change      (979)     - 
Depreciation flow-through      911     891 
Cost of Removal      (609)     (616)
Merger Transaction Costs      (12)     84 
Other      (621)     (664)
  Total income tax    $ 8,830   $ 7,807 
             
Effective tax rate - federal       33.0 %     34.7 % 
Effective tax rate - state       3.1 %     0.9 % 
Effective tax rate - combined       36.1 %     35.6 % 
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Reconciliation - Central Hudson                    
                      

The following is a reconciliation between the amount of federal income tax computed on 
income before taxes at the statutory rate and the amount reported in Central Hudson’s 
Statement of Income (In Thousands):  
                      

        
Three Months Ended 

 March 31, 
        2014      2013    
Net income     $ 16,252   $ 14,369 
Federal income tax       9,385     5,318 
Deferred federal income tax       (288)     2,565 
Deferred state income tax       281     901 
  Income before taxes     $ 25,630   $ 23,153 
              
Computed federal tax at 35% statutory rate     $ 8,970   $ 8,104 
State income tax net of federal tax benefit       1,260     901 
State income tax rate change       (979)     - 
Depreciation flow-through       911     891 
Cost of Removal       (609)     (616)
Other       (175)     (496)
  Total income tax     $ 9,378   $ 8,784 
              
Effective tax rate - federal       35.5 %     34.0 % 
Effective tax rate - state       1.1 %     3.9 % 
Effective tax rate - combined       36.6 %     37.9 % 
                  
On March 31, 2013 New York State enacted into law a corporate income tax rate 
reduction from the current 7.1% to 6.5%, effective January 1, 2016.  The resulting one-
time adjustment to long term NYS tax liabilities to reflect this change has decreased the 
effective tax rate for the quarter ended March 31, 2014. 

 
NOTE 5 – Acquisitions, Divestitures and Investments  
 
Acquisitions  
 
During the quarters ended March 31, 2014 and 2013, neither CH Energy Group nor 
Central Hudson made any acquisitions. 
 
Divestitures 
 
During the first quarter of 2014, CHEC divested Griffith.  The results of operations of 
Griffith for the current and prior period are presented in discontinued operations in the 
CH Energy Group Consolidated Statement of Income.  Management has elected to 
include cash flows from discontinued operations of those investments with those from 
continuing operations in the CH Energy Group Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows.  
The details of the sales transaction are as follows (In Thousands):  
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            Griffith 
Date of Sale   3/4/2014 
                
Assets:       
  Cash   $ 4,151  
  Accounts Receivable, net of allowance     47,160  
  Fuel, Materials and Supplies     5,228  
  Other Current Assets     6,681  
       Total Current Assets     63,220  
                
  Net Intangibles     48,660  
  Other Assets     1,227  
               
  Property, Plant and Equipment:      
    Property, plant and equipment     34,711  
    Less: Accumulated depreciation     24,235  
      Total property, plant and equipment, net     10,476  
               
        Assets sold   $ 123,583  
               
Liabilities:      
  Accounts Payable   $ 10,978  
  Deferred Revenue     4,448  
  Accrued Expenses     2,325  
  Accrued Vacation and Payroll     2,070  
  Other Current Liabilities     6,765  
       Total Current Liabilities     26,586  
               
  Other Liabilities     4,863  
               
        Liabilities sold   $ 31,449  
               
Net Assets Sold   $ 92,134  
Net Proceeds from Sale   $ 100,208  
Pre-tax gain on sales transaction   $ 8,074  
Net Increase to Earnings   $ 3,153  
                
The table below provides additional detail of the financial results of the discontinued 
operations (In Thousands): 
            
    Three Months Ended 
    March 31, 
    2014  2013  
Revenues from discontinued operations   $ 85,856 $ 103,911 
Income from discontinued operations before tax     6,892   8,190 
Gain from sale of discontinued operations     8,074   - 
Income tax expense from discontinued operations     7,263(1)  3,358 

(1) This amount includes $2.3 million of taxes associated with operations prior to the sale (including a NYS income tax benefit of 
$0.5 million) and $4.9 million of taxes associated with the taxable gain on the sale (including $1.5 million of additional NYS taxes 
on the taxable gain on the sale).  
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Investments  
                
The value of CHEC's investments as of March 31, 2014 is as follows  (In Thousands): 
                

CHEC Investment   Description     
Equity 

Investment 
CH-Community Wind   50% equity interest in a joint venture that owns 18% interest in two 

operating wind projects   1  $ - 
Other   Partnerships and an energy sector venture capital fund 

      2,150 
            $ 2,150 

 
These remaining investments are not considered a part of the core business; however, 
management intends to retain these investments at this time. 
 
NOTE 6 – Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets 
 
As of March 31, 2014, Griffith was sold, thereby, decreasing customer relationships, 
trademarks and covenants not to compete to zero.   
 
The components of amortizable intangible assets of CH Energy Group are summarized as 
follows (In Thousands): 
                            
      December 31, 2013   March 31, 2013 

      

Gross 
Carrying 
Amount   

Accumulated 
Amortization   

Gross 
Carrying 
Amount   

Accumulated 
Amortization 

Customer relationships   $ 37,709   $ 28,531    $ 37,709   $ 26,645 

Trademarks     318     32      318     8 

Covenants not to compete     411     196      411     122 

Total Amortizable Intangibles (1)   $ 38,438   $ 28,759    $ 38,438   $ 26,775 
(1) December 31, 2013 balance reflected as "Assets held for sale" in the CH Energy Group Consolidated Balance Sheet.  Amortization 

related to customer relationships, trademarks and covenants not to compete ceased upon sale. 

 
Under current accounting guidance following the designation of Griffith 
intangibles as held for sale at December 31, 2013, amortization ceased. 
          

      

Three Months 
Ended 

 March 31, 
      2013  

Intangibles Amortization Expense (In Thousands) (1) $ 661 
(1) Included in "Income from discontinued operations" on the CH Energy Group Consolidated 

Statement of Income.
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NOTE 7 – Short-Term Borrowing Arrangements 
 
CH Energy Group and Central Hudson borrowings under its committed and 
uncommitted short-term borrowing arrangements are as follows (In Thousands):  

 
  March 31, 2014  December 31, 2013  March 31, 2013 
CH Energy Group  
   Holding Company 
   Short-term borrowings 

  
 
$         -                       

  
 
$ 

 
 

- 

  
 
$ 

 
 

  29,000                               
Central Hudson 
   Short-term borrowings 

  
 18,000 

  
 

 
- 

  
 

 
  27,000                                         

Intercompany borrowing                 (8,000)       
Total CH Energy Group  $ 10,000  $ -  $  56,000                                        
Total CH Energy Group 
   Weighted Average 
   Interest Rate 

  

                0.94% 

   
 

- 

   
 

0.97% 
 
 
NOTE 8 – Capitalization – Common and Preferred Stoc k  

 
For a schedule of activity related to common stock, paid-in capital and capital stock, see 
the Consolidated Statement of Equity for CH Energy Group and Statement of Equity for 
Central Hudson.   
   
During the three months ended March 31, 2014, CH Energy Group paid dividends to 
FortisUS Inc. of $5.0 million.  
 
During the three months ended March 31, 2014 and March 31, 2013, Central Hudson 
paid dividends of $5.0 million to parent CH Energy Group.   
 
NOTE 9 – Capitalization – Long-Term Debt 
 
In March 2014 Central Hudson issued $30 million of 10-year debt with a floating interest 
rate of 3 month LIBOR plus 1%.  Central Hudson used the proceeds from the sale of the 
notes for refunding maturing long term debt, working capital and for general corporate 
purposes. 
 
To mitigate the potential cash flow impact from unexpected increases in short-term 
interest rates, Central Hudson purchased a 3-year interest rate cap based on 3 month 
LIBOR.  The rate cap is three years in length with a notional amount equal to the 
outstanding principal amount of the Series E and will expire.  The cap is based on the 
quarterly reset of the LIBOR rate on the quarterly interest payment dates.  Central 
Hudson would receive a payout if the LIBOR rate exceeds 4% at the start of any 
quarterly interest period during the term of the cap.  See Note 14 – “Accounting for 
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities” for fair value disclosures related to this 
instrument.   
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NYSERDA  
 
The principal amount of Central Hudson’s outstanding Series B NYSERDA Bonds 
totaled $33.7 million at March 31, 2014.  These are tax-exempt multi-modal bonds that 
are currently in a variable rate mode.  In its Orders, the PSC has authorized deferral 
accounting treatment for variations in the interest costs of these bonds.  As such, 
variations between the actual interest rates on these bonds and the interest rate 
included in the current delivery rate structure for these bonds are deferred for future 
recovery from or refund to customers and therefore do not impact earnings.   

 
To mitigate the potential cash flow impact from unexpected increases in short-term 
interest rates on Series B NYSERDA Bonds, on March 27, 2014, Central Hudson 
purchased an interest rate cap based on an index of short-term tax-exempt debt.  The 
rate cap is two years in length with a notional amount equal to the outstanding principal 
amount of the Series B and will expire on April 1, 2016.  The cap is based on the 
monthly weighted average of an index of tax-exempt variable rate debt, multiplied by 
175%.  Central Hudson would receive a payout if the adjusted index exceeds 5.0% for a 
given month.  The rate cap replaced an expiring rate cap with substantially similar 
terms. See Note 14 – “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities” for 
fair value disclosures related to this instrument.  
 
 
NOTE 10 – Post-Employment Benefits  
 
Central Hudson provides certain health care and life insurance benefits for retired 
employees through its post-retirement benefit plans.  Central Hudson pension benefits 
include a Retirement Income Plan (“RIP”) and a non-qualified Supplemental Executive 
Retirement Plan (“SERP”). 

 
In its Orders, the PSC has authorized deferral accounting treatment for any variations 
between actual pension and other post-employment benefits (“OPEB”) expense and the 
amount included in the current delivery rate structure.  As a result, post-retirement 
benefit plans at Central Hudson do not have any impact on earnings.  The following 
information is provided in accordance with current accounting requirements. 
 
The following are the components of Central Hudson’s net periodic benefit costs for its 
pension and OPEB plans for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 (In 
Thousands):  
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      Pension Benefits   OPEB 
      Three Months Ended    Three Months Ended 
      March 31,   March 31, 
      2014    2013    2014    2013  
Service cost   $ 2,680   $ 3,073   $ 668   $ 760 
Interest cost     6,441     5,732     1,315     1,382 
Expected return on plan assets     (8,705)    (7,698)    (1,774)    (1,723)
Amortization of:                 
  Prior service cost (credit)     405     433     (1,465)    (1,465)
  Transitional obligation     -     -     2     2 
Recognized actuarial loss      2,535     4,840     966     1,582 
Net Periodic Benefit Cost   $ 3,356   $ 6,380   $ (288)  $ 538 

 
The balance of Central Hudson's accrued pension costs (i.e., the under-funded 
status) is as follows (In Thousands):  
                    
    March 31,   December 31,   March 31, 

    2014    2013    2013  
Accrued pension costs   $ 1,937  $ 18,083   $ 88,828 
             
These balances include the difference between the projected benefit obligation 
(“PBO”) for pensions and the market value of the pension assets, and any liability 
for SERP. 
 

The following reflects the impact of the recording of funding status adjustments on the 
Balance Sheets of CH Energy Group and Central Hudson (In Thousands):  
                    
    March 31,   December 31,   March 31, 

    2014    2013    2013  
Prefunded pension costs prior to funding 
   status adjustment   $ 39,518  $ 26,311   $ 44,956 
Additional liability required     (41,455)    (44,394)    (133,784)
Total accrued pension costs   $ (1,937)  $ (18,083)  $ (88,828)

Total offset to additional liability - 
   Regulatory assets - Pension Plan   $ 41,455  $ 44,394   $ 133,784 

 
Gains or losses and prior service costs or credits that arise during the period but that 
are not recognized as components of net periodic pension cost would typically be 
recognized as a component of other comprehensive income, net of tax.  However, 
Central Hudson has PSC approval to record regulatory assets rather than adjusting 
comprehensive income to offset the additional liability. 
 
Contribution levels for the RIP and OPEB plans are determined by various factors 
including the funded status, expected return on plan assets, benefit changes, and 
corporate resources.  In addition, OPEB plan contribution levels are also impacted by 
medical claims and mortality assumptions.  
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Contributions for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 were as follows (In 
Thousands):  
                                  

Retirement Income Plan   OPEB         
Three Months Ended     Three Months Ended           

March 31,     March 31,           
2014    2013      2014    2013            

$ 16,400 $ 26,000     $ 2,238   $ -           
 
Retirement Plan Policy and Strategy 

 
Central Hudson’s Retirement Plan investment policy seeks to achieve long-term growth 
and income to match the long-term nature of its funding obligations. The investment 
policy also reduces the volatility of the plan’s funded status and the level of contributions 
by more closely aligning the characteristics of plan assets with liabilities.  Due to market 
value fluctuations, RIP assets will require rebalancing from time to time to maintain the 
asset allocation within target ranges.  Central Hudson cannot assure that the RIP’s 
return objectives or funded status objectives will be achieved.  
 
Asset allocation targets in effect for the three months ended March 31, 2014 as well as 
actual asset allocations as of March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 expressed as a 
percentage of the market value of the Retirement Plan’s assets, are summarized in the 
table below:  
 
                                  

Asset Class   December 31, 2013     Minimum     
Target 

Average     Maximum     March 31, 2014   
Equity Securities   52.2 %   41 %   50 %   59 %   50.4 % 
Debt Securities   45.3 %   45 %   50 %   55 %   47.8 % 
Other(1)   2.5 %   - %   - %   10 %   1.8 % 
              
(1) Consists of temporary cash investments, as well as receivables for investments sold and interest, and payables for investments 

purchased, which have not settled as of that date. 

 
NOTE 11 – Equity-Based Compensation  
 
On June 25, 2013, prior to the completion of the acquisition of CH Energy Group by 
Fortis, the CH Energy Group, Inc. 2011 Long-Term Equity Incentive Plan (the “2011 
Plan”) was terminated.  Immediately prior to the completion of the acquisition, all 
unvested awards (performance shares, restricted shares and restricted stock units) 
under the 2011 Plan became vested and were converted into the right to receive $65.00 
per share.     

 
Compensation Expense  
                     
The following table summarizes expense for equity-based compensation by award type 
for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 (In Thousands): 
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    CH Energy Group Central Hudson 

    
Three Months Ended 

March 31,   
Three Months Ended 

March 31, 
    2014    2013      2014    2013  

Performance shares   $ -   $ 617     $ -   $ 502 
Restricted shares and stock units   $ -   $ 105     $ -   $ 72 
Recognized tax benefit of restricted 
   shares and stock units   $ -   $ 41     $ -   $ 29 
                     
Prior to the acquisition of CH Energy Group by Fortis, compensation expense for 
performance shares was recognized over the three year performance period based on 
the fair value of the awards at the end of each reporting period and the time elapsed 
within each grant's performance period.  The fair value of performance shares was 
determined based on the shares' current market value at the end of each reporting 
period, estimated forfeitures for each grant, and expected payout based on 
management's best estimate including analysis of historical performance in accordance 
with the defined metrics of each grant.  Compensation expense was recorded as 
performance shares are earned over the relevant three-year life of the performance 
share grant prior to its award.   
 
Compensation expense for restricted shares prior to the acquisition by Fortis was 
recognized over the defined vesting periods based on the grant date fair value of the 
awards.  There was no stock options outstanding during the three months ended March 
31, 2014 and 2013. 
                     
Immediately prior to the completion of the acquisition of the CH Energy Group 
acquisition by Fortis, all remaining unvested performance shares and restricted stock 
shares and restricted stock units vested and were cancelled in exchange for cash 
payments.  As a result of the acceleration, additional expense of $5.8 million related to 
performance shares and $0.7 million related to restricted shares and restricted stock 
units were recognized at the CH Energy Group holding company in the second quarter 
of 2013 and not allocated to its subsidiaries. 
 
NOTE 12 – Commitments and Contingencies 
 
Electricity Purchase Commitments 
 
In 2010, Central Hudson entered into two agreements with Entergy Nuclear Power 
Marketing, LLC to purchase electricity on a unit-contingent basis at defined prices from 
January 1, 2011 through December 31, 2013.  For the three months ended March 31, 
2013, energy supplied under these agreements cost approximately $4.3 million.  These 
contracts expired on December 31, 2013 and were not renewed. 

 
Currently, Central Hudson meets its capacity and electricity obligations through 
contracts with capacity and energy providers, purchases from the NYISO capacity 
market and its own generating capacity.  
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Environmental Matters  
 
Central Hudson  
 
 
·  Former Manufactured Gas Plant Facilities 

 
Central Hudson and its predecessors owned and operated manufactured gas plants 
(“MGPs”) to serve their customers’ heating and lighting needs. These plants 
manufactured gas from coal and oil beginning in the mid to late 1800s with all sites 
ceasing operations by the 1950s. This process produced certain by-products that may 
pose risks to human health and the environment. 

 
The New York State Department of Environmental Conservation (“DEC”), which 
regulates the timing and extent of remediation of MGP sites in New York State, has 
notified Central Hudson that it believes Central Hudson or its predecessors at one time 
owned and/or operated MGPs at seven sites in Central Hudson’s franchise territory.  
The DEC has further requested that Central Hudson investigate and, if necessary, 
remediate these sites under a Consent Order, Voluntary Cleanup Agreement, or 
Brownfield Cleanup Agreement.  The DEC has placed all seven of these sites on the 
New York State Environmental Site Remediation Database.  As authorized by the PSC, 
Central Hudson is currently permitted to defer for future recovery the differences 
between actual costs for MGP site investigation and remediation and the associated 
rate allowances, with carrying charges to be accrued on the deferred balances at the 
authorized pre-tax rate of return.  In the June 26, 2013 Order (Case 12-M-192), the PSC 
modified the deferral for MGP Site Investigation and Remediation ("SIR") Costs 
authorized to apply to all Environmental SIR costs incurred by Central Hudson during 
the period from July 1, 2013 to June 30, 2015.   
 
Site investigation and remediation can be divided into various stages of completion 
based on the milestones of activities completed and reports reviewed.  Central Hudson 
accrues for remediation costs based on the amounts that can be reasonably estimated 
at a point in time.  These stages, the types of costs accrued during various stages and 
the sites currently in each stage, include: 

1. Investigation – Begins with preliminary investigations and is completed 
upon filing and approval by DEC of a Remedial Investigation (“RI”) Report.  
Central Hudson accrues for estimated investigation costs, Remediation 
Alternative Analysis (“RAA”), and Remedial Design costs.   

2. Remedial Alternatives Analysis – Engineering analysis of alternatives for 
remediation based on the RI is compiled into a RAA Report.  Upon 
completion of the RAA and the filing with the DEC, management accrues 
for an estimate of remediation costs developed and quantified in the RAA 
based on DEC approved methods, as well as an estimate of post-
remediation operation, maintenance and monitoring costs (“OM&M”).  
These amounts represent a significant portion of the total costs to 
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remediate and are subject to change based on further investigations, final 
remedial design and associated engineering estimates, regulatory 
comments and requests, remedial design changes/negotiations, and 
changed or unforeseen conditions during the remediation or additional 
requirements following the remediation. Prior to the completion of the 
RAA, management cannot reasonably estimate what cost will be incurred 
for remediation or post-remediation activities. 

�  Site #2 –  Newburgh Area A  – Remedial Alternatives Analysis in progress 
-  In 2012, Central Hudson retired and removed propane air facilities 

located on Area A.  Following investigation of the former propane tank 
area, a scope of work was developed for remediation. 

-  In March 2014, approximately $5 million was accrued based on this 
scope of work and cost estimate developed for remediation of the 
former propane tank area.  

�  Site #5 – North Water Street – Remedial Alternatives Analysis in 
progress 
-  The Interim Remedial Measure (“IRM”), Construction Completion 

Report (“CCR”) and Interim Site Management Plan (“SMP”) associated 
with the southern portion of this site, were approved by the DEC in 
May 2013. 

-  Field activities associated with the former propane tank area 
investigation have been completed and the DEC has approved the 
report of findings.  Based on the results of this investigation some level 
of future remediation may be required in this area.  

-  Preparation of the RAA is in process and it is anticipated that the RAA 
Report will be submitted to the DEC for review and approval in the 
summer of 2014, at which time an estimate of the costs for remediation 
and OM&M will be accrued. 

-  Amounts currently accrued represent an estimate for completion of the 
RAA and Remedial Design.     

�  Site #6 – Kingston – Remedial Alternative Analysis in Progress 
-  The DEC is reviewing the revised RAA Report.  Once approved, 

remediation design will began. 
-  Approximately $33 million was accrued in December 2013 based on 

the scope of work and cost estimate developed for remediation and 
OM&M activities in the RAA.   

3. Remedial Design - Upon approval of the RAA and final decision of 
remediation approach based on alternatives presented, a Remedial 
Design is developed and filed with the DEC for approval. 

4. Remediation – Completion of the work plan as defined in the approved 
Remedial Design.  Upon completion, final reports are filed with the DEC 
for approval and may include a CCR, Final Engineering Report (“FER”), or 
other reports required by the DEC based on the work performed. 

5. Post-Remediation Monitoring – Entails the OM&M as directed by the DEC 
based on the approved final report of remediation.  The activities are 
typically defined in a SMP, which is approved by the DEC.  The extent of 
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activities during this phase may increase or decrease based on the results 
of ongoing monitoring being performed and future potential usage of the 
property. 

�  Site #2 –  Newburgh – Post-Remediation In Progress 
-  Amounts accrued represent an estimate of costs for OM&M and 

execution of the draft SMP related to the previously remediated area of 
site. 

�  Site #3 – Laurel Street  – Post-Remediation In Progress 
-  The SMP is expected to be submitted to the DEC for review and 

approval during the summer of 2014. 
-  Amounts accrued represent an estimate of costs for OM&M.  

�  Site #4 – Catskill – Post-Remediation In Progress 
-  During 2013, remediation activities were essentially complete, as well 

as the installation and development of post remediation wells. 
-  The draft FER and SMP were submitted to the DEC for review in 2013 

and March 2014, respectively.  
-  Amounts accrued represent an estimate of costs to complete the post-

remediation and OM&M. 
·  No Action Required 

�  Site #1 – Beacon  – No Action Required 
-  The SMP was submitted to the DEC and a release letter for the site 

was received in 2013. 
-  No further costs are expected and no amounts are accrued as of 

December 31, 2013 related to this site. 
-  If the building at this site were to be removed, further investigation and 

testing would be required related to the soil under the building, which 
may require additional remediation.  Management cannot currently 
estimate the likelihood of the building being removed or the costs that 
may be incurred related to this. 

�   Site #7 – Bayeaux Street – No further investigation or remedial action is 
currently required.  However, per the DEC this site still remains on the list 
for potential future investigation.  

 
A summary of amounts accrued and spent are detailed in the chart below (In 
Thousands): 
 
    Liability           Liability    Current    Long-Term 
      Recorded   Amounts        Recorded   Portion of   Portion of 
      as of   Spent in   Liability   as of    Liability at   Liability at 
Site #   12/31/13   2014(1)   Adjustment   3/31/14   3/31/14   3/31/14 
2, 3, 4, 6   $ 39,845   $ 197   $ 5,989    $ 45,637   $ 1,004   $ 44,633 
5      957     27      (190)     740     296     444 
      $ 40,802   $ 224   $ 5,799    $ 46,377   $ 1,300   $ 45,077 

 
Based on a cost model analysis completed in 2012 of possible remediation and future 
OM&M costs for sites #2 through #6, Central Hudson believes there is a 90% 
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confidence level that the total costs to remediate these sites will not exceed $152 million 
over the next 30 years.  The cost model involves assumptions relating to investigation 
expenses, results of investigations, remediation costs, potential future liabilities, and 
post-remedial OM&M costs, and is based on a variety of factors including projections 
regarding the amount and extent of contamination, the location, size and use of the 
sites, proximity to sensitive resources, status of regulatory investigations, and 
information regarding remediation activities at other MGP sites in New York State.  The 
cost model also assumes that proposed or anticipated remediation techniques are 
technically feasible and that proposed remediation plans receive DEC and New York 
State Department of Health (“NYSDOH”) for approval. 
 
Future remediation activities, including OM&M and related costs may vary significantly 
from the assumptions used in Central Hudson's current cost estimates, and these costs 
could have a material adverse effect (the extent of which cannot be reasonably 
determined) on the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of CH 
Energy Group and Central Hudson if Central Hudson were unable to recover all or a 
substantial portion of these costs via collection in rates from customers and/or through 
insurance. 
 
Central Hudson expects to recover its remediation costs from its customers.  The 
current components of this recovery include: 

-  The 2010 Rate Order included cash recovery from customers of $13.6 million 
spread equally over the three year settlement period ending June 30, 2013. 
The 2013 Joint Petition (“JP”) continues cash recovery from customers of 
$9.2 million from July 1, 2013 through Rate Year ending June 30, 2015.    

-  As part of the 2010 Rate Order and JP, Central Hudson maintained 
previously granted deferral authority and subsequent recovery for amounts 
spent over the rate allowance. 

-  Total MGP Site Investigation and Remediation costs recovered through rates 
and other regulatory mechanisms from July 1, 2007 through March 31, 2014 
was approximately $30.2 million, with $1.2 million recovered in the three 
months ended March 31, 2014.  

-  The total spent in the three months ended March 31, 2014 related to site 
investigation and remediation was approximately $0.5 million. 

-  The regulatory asset balance as of March 31, 2014 was $51.2 million, which 
represents the difference between amounts spent or currently accrued as a 
liability and the amounts recovered through rate allowance, as well as 
carrying charges accrued. Upon completion of investigation at site #5, when 
remediation and post-remediation costs will be able to be reasonably 
estimated and therefore will be recorded as a liability, this regulatory asset 
balance will likely increase significantly. 

 
Central Hudson has put its insurers on notice and intends to seek reimbursement from 
its insurers for its costs.  Certain of these insurers have denied coverage.  In addition to 
the rate allowance amounts noted above, Central Hudson has previously recovered 
approximately $2.3 million from insurance. There were no insurance recoveries in the 
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first quarter of 2014.  However, we do not expect insurance recoveries to offset a 
meaningful portion of total costs. 
 
·  Little Britain Road property owned by Central Hudson 
 
There has been no change to this site in 2014, however, the relevant disclosure is 
provided as required.  In 2000, Central Hudson and the DEC entered into a Voluntary 
Cleanup Agreement (“VCA”) whereby Central Hudson removed approximately 3,100 
tons of soil and conducted groundwater sampling.  Central Hudson believes that it has 
fulfilled its obligations under the VCA and should receive the release provided for in the 
VCA, but the DEC has proposed that additional groundwater work be done to address 
groundwater sampling results that showed the presence of certain contaminants at 
levels exceeding the DEC criteria.  Central Hudson believes that such work is not 
necessary and has completed a soil vapor intrusion study showing that indoor air at the 
facility met Occupational Safety and Health Administration (“OSHA”) and NYSDOH 
standards.  In October 2011, the DEC requested a ‘non-committal’ meeting with Central 
Hudson to discuss the site and possible next steps.  At the annual MGP meeting with 
Central Hudson in October 2012, the DEC discussed the Little Britain Road property 
requesting an upcoming meeting to discuss the site and possible next steps. Central 
Hudson responded that we are available for such a meeting.  A meeting date has yet to 
be established. 

 
At this time Central Hudson does not have sufficient information to estimate the need for 
additional remediation or potential remediation costs.  Central Hudson has put its 
insurers on notice regarding this matter and intends to seek reimbursement from its 
insurers for amounts, if any, for which it may become liable.  Central Hudson cannot 
predict the outcome of this matter. 
 
·  Eltings Corners  
 
Central Hudson owns and operates a maintenance and warehouse facility.  In the 
course of Central Hudson’s hazardous waste permit renewal process for this facility, 
sediment contamination was discovered within the wetland area across the street from 
the main property.  Based on the investigation worked completed by Central Hudson, 
the DEC and Central Hudson agreed late in 2013 that no additional investigation efforts 
are necessary.  As requested by the DEC, Central Hudson submitted a draft Corrective 
Measures Study (“CMS”) scoping document for review by the DEC. The extent of the 
contamination has been established and $2.8 million estimate for the costs has been 
accrued. 
 
Certain Litigation Related to the Fortis Transactio n 
 
Following the announcement of the proposed acquisition of CH Energy Group by Fortis 
on February 21, 2012, several complaints were filed by purported CH Energy Group 
shareholders.  
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All actions were joined under the master caption In re CH Energy Group, Inc. 
Shareholder Litigation and, on April 9, 2012, a master amended complaint was filed. In 
the master amended complaint, plaintiffs named defendants CH Energy Group, its 
directors, Fortis, FortisUS, and Cascade Acquisition Sub, Inc. and sought among other 
things, an order preliminarily and permanently enjoining the merger with Fortis, 
damages, and plaintiffs’ fees and expenses. The plaintiffs generally alleged that the 
individual defendants breached their fiduciary duties in connection with the proposed 
transaction and that the entity defendants aided and abetted that breach.  The plaintiffs 
further alleged that the preliminary proxy filed in connection with the proposed 
transaction with Fortis contained material misstatements and omissions.  

 
In February 2014, the parties executed a settlement agreement that would, among other 
things, dismiss all causes of action asserted in the master amended complaint and 
release all claims that shareholders of CH Energy Group from February 19, 2012 
through consummation of the merger may have arising out of or relating in any manner 
to the merger.  Following the execution and submission of the signed settlement 
agreement to the court in February 2014, the court issued a preliminary approval order, 
dated February 21, 2014, by which the court, among other things, preliminarily 
approved the settlement agreement and scheduled a final settlement hearing for June 
19, 2014. 

 
Absent final court approval of the proposed settlement agreement, the defendants 
intend to vigorously defend themselves against the action. 
 
Other Matters 
 
Asbestos Litigation 

 
As of March 31, 2014, of the 3,343 asbestos cases brought against Central Hudson, 
1,171 remained pending.  Of the cases no longer pending against Central Hudson, 
2,017 have been dismissed or discontinued without payment by Central Hudson, and 
Central Hudson has settled 155 cases.  Central Hudson is presently unable to assess 
the validity of the remaining asbestos lawsuits; however, based on information known to 
Central Hudson at this time, including Central Hudson’s experience in settling asbestos 
cases and in obtaining dismissals of asbestos cases, Central Hudson believes that the 
costs which may be incurred in connection with the remaining lawsuits will not have a 
material adverse effect on the financial position, results of operations or cash flows of 
either CH Energy Group or Central Hudson. 
 
Other Litigation 
 
Central Hudson is involved in various other legal and administrative proceedings 
incidental to their businesses, which are in various stages.  While these matters 
collectively could involve substantial amounts, based on the facts currently known, it is 
the opinion of management that their ultimate resolution will not have a material adverse 
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effect on either of CH Energy Group’s or the individual segment’s financial positions, 
results of operations or cash flows. 

 
CH Energy Group and Central Hudson expense legal costs as incurred. 
 
NOTE 13 – Segments and Related Information 

 
CH Energy Group's reportable operating segments are the regulated electric utility 
business and regulated natural gas utility business of Central Hudson and the 
unregulated fuel distribution business of Griffith until its divestiture on March 4, 2014.  
Other activities of CH Energy Group, which do not constitute a business segment, 
include CHEC’s renewable energy investments and the holding company’s activities, 
which consist primarily of financing its subsidiaries, and are reported under the heading 
“Other Businesses and Investments.” 
 
Certain additional information regarding these segments is set forth in the following 
tables.  General corporate expenses and Central Hudson’s property common to both 
electric and natural gas segments have been allocated in accordance with practices 
established for regulatory purposes. 
 
Central Hudson’s operations are seasonal in nature and weather-sensitive and, as a 
result, financial results for interim periods are not necessarily indicative of trends for a 
twelve-month period.  Demand for electricity typically peaks during the summer, while 
demand for natural gas typically peaks during the winter. 
 
On March 4, 2014, CHEC completed the sale of Griffith to Star Gas Partners, L.P.  
Therefore, operating results of Griffith are reported as discontinued operations for all 
periods presented in the Consolidated CH Group Statement of Income.  The segment 
information presented below for Griffith includes the operating results for this segment. 
The reclassification of these results to discontinued operations is presented in the 
Elimination column in order to reconcile the total to the amounts presented in the 
Consolidated CH Energy Group Statement of Income for all periods presented.   
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  CH Energy Group Segment Disclosure                          
  (In Thousands)    Three Months Ended March 31, 2014 

       Segments   Other             
       Central Hudson         Businesses             
             Natural         and             
       Electric   Gas   Griffith   Investments   Eliminations   Total 

Revenues from external  
   customers     $ 174,416 $ 72,433  $ 85,856  (3) $ -    $ (85,856)  $ 246,849 
Intersegment revenues       3   196    -    -      (199)    - 
   Total revenues       174,419   72,629    85,856  (3)   -      (86,055)    246,849 
Operating Income (loss)       19,824   12,005    7,342  (3)(4)   (1,144)     (7,000)    31,027 
Interest and investment  
    income       1,122   176    -    441      (430)    1,309 
Interest charges       6,211   1,659    425  (3)   465      (430)    8,330 
Income (loss) before 
   income taxes       15,025   10,605    5,671  (3)   (2,607)     (4,224)    24,470 
Net Income Attributable to 
   CH Energy Group     10,094   6,158    3,346  (1)(3)   3,745   (2)   -     23,343 
Segment assets at  
   March 31     1,275,523   445,639    -    95,792      (1,036)    1,815,918 

 

(1) 

 

 

Includes net income of $3,376 related to Griffith's earnings that are allocated to Discontinued Operations. 
(2) Includes net income from Discontinued Operations of $5,143 related to Other Businesses & Investments earnings, including the gain on 

sale that is allocated to Discontinued Operations.  A combined filing tax detriment of $1,067 recorded at the Holding Company as the net 
result of the gain on Griffith sale and impacts of current year Griffith's operations is included in Discontinued Operations.  In addition, the 
amount includes $251 related to interest income at the Holding Company for inter-company funding of Griffith debt. 

(3) Amount represents Discontinued Operations and has been classified as such in the CH Energy Group Consolidated Statement of 
Income. This amount is included in the Eliminations column as a reconciliation to the Income Statement presentation.  

(4) This amount includes ($51) of overhead charges and associated tax benefit billed to Griffith that will be re-allocated to Central Hudson in 
future years following the sale of Griffith.  As such, the amount shown in the elimination column due to the reclassification of Discontinued 
Operations for this line item does not remove the impact of the overhead charges previously discussed. 
 

  CH Energy Group Segment Disclosure                          
  (In Thousands)    Three Months Ended March 31, 2013 

       Segments   Other             
       Central Hudson         Businesses             
             Natural         and             
       Electric   Gas   Griffith   Investments   Eliminations   Total 

Revenues from external  
   customers     $ 138,163 $ 56,300  $ 103,911  (2) $ -    $ (103,911)  $ 194,463 
Intersegment revenues       2   116    -    -      (118)    - 
   Total revenues       138,165   56,416    103,911  (3)   -      (104,029)    194,463 
Operating income (loss)       16,967   12,191    7,791  (3)(4)   (528)     (8,104)    28,317 
Interest and investment  
    income       1,214   196    -    656      (644)    1,422 
Interest charges       6,166   1,635    644  (3)   544      (644)    8,345 
Income (loss) before  
   income taxes       12,306   10,847    7,233  (3)   (275)     (8,190)    21,921 
Net Income Attributable to 
   CH Energy Group     7,263   6,250    4,268  (1)(3)   309   (2)   -     18,090 
Segment assets at 
   March 31     1,297,312   370,390    122,695    13,928      (700)    1,803,625 
                           

(1) Includes net income of $4,452 related to Griffith's earnings that are allocated to Discontinued Operations. 
(2) Includes net income from Discontinued Operations of $380 related to interest income at the Holding Company for inter-company funding 

of Griffith debt. 
(3) Amount represents Discontinued Operations and has been classified as such in the CH Energy Group Consolidated Statement of 

Income.  This amount is included in the elimination column as a reconciliation to the Income Statement presentation. 
(4) This amount includes ($313) of overhead charges and associated tax benefit billed to Griffith that will be re-allocated to Central Hudson in 

future years following the sale of Griffith.  As such, the amount shown in the elimination column due to the reclassification of Discontinued 
Operations for this line item does not remove the impact of the overhead charges previously discussed. 
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NOTE 14 - Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging 
Activities  

 
Accounting for Derivatives 

 
Central Hudson has been authorized to fully recover risk management costs through its 
natural gas and electricity cost adjustment charge clauses.  Risk management costs are 
defined by the PSC as "costs associated with transactions that are intended to reduce 
price volatility or reduce overall costs to customers.  These costs include transaction 
costs, and gains and losses associated with risk management instruments."  The 
related gains and losses associated with Central Hudson’s derivatives are included as 
part of Central Hudson's commodity cost and/or price-reconciled in its natural gas and 
electricity cost adjustment charge clauses, and are not designated as hedges.  
Additionally, Central Hudson has been authorized to fully recover the interest costs 
associated with its $33.7 million Series B NYSERDA Bonds, which includes costs and 
gains or losses associated with its interest rate cap contracts.  The $30 million of  debt 
issued in March 2014 and associated interest rate cap have not been incorporated into 
the current rate structure due to the two year rate freeze period.   
 

 
The percentage of Central Hudson’s electric and gas requirements covered with fixed 
price forward purchases is as follows: 

 
Central Hudson  % of Requirement Hedged (1) 
Electric Derivative Contracts:   
   April 2014 – December 2014  50.0% 
   2015  39.5% 
   2016  23.6% 
   2017  7.8% 
Natural Gas Derivative Contracts:   
   November 2014 – March 2015  0.0% 
 
(1) Projected coverage as of March 31, 2014. 

 
Derivative Risks 
 
The basic types of risks associated with derivatives are market risk (that the value of the 
derivative will be adversely impacted by changes in the market, primarily the change in 
interest and exchange rates) and credit risk (that the counterparty will not perform 
according to the terms of the contract).  The market risk of the derivatives generally 
offset the market risk associated with the hedged commodity. 

 
The majority of Central Hudson’s derivative instruments contain provisions that require 
the Company to maintain specified issuer credit ratings and financial strength ratings.  
Should the company’s ratings fall below these specified levels, it would be in violation of 
the provisions, and the derivatives’ counterparties could terminate the contracts and 
request immediate payment.  
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To help limit the credit exposure of derivatives, Central Hudson has entered into master 
netting agreement with counterparties whereby contracts in a gain position can be offset 
against contracts in a loss position.  Of the seventeen total agreements held by Central 
Hudson, nine contain credit-risk related contingent features. As of March 31, 2014, the 
amount that would be required to settle these instruments if the contingent features 
were triggered was immaterial.  
 
CH Energy Group and Central Hudson have elected gross presentation for their 
derivative contracts under master netting agreements and collateral positions.  On 
March 31, 2014, Central Hudson did not have collateral posted against the fair value 
amount of derivatives. 
 
The net presentation for CH Energy Group's and Central Hudson's derivative assets and 
liabilities as of March 31, 2014, December 31, 2013 and March 31, 2013 are as follows (In 
Thousands): 
                                        
              Net     
              Amount of     
              Assets     
          Gross   Presented     
          Amounts   in the   Gross Amounts Not Offset in the 
      Gross    Offset in   Statement   Statement of Financial Position 
      Amounts of   the   of        Cash     
      Recognized   Financial   Financial   Financial   Collateral   Net 
Description Assets   Position   Position   Instruments   Received   Amount 
As of March 31, 2014                                   
Derivative Contracts:                                   
  Central Hudson - electric $ 20,425   $ -    $ 20,425   $ -   $ -   $ 20,425 
  Central Hudson - gas1    -     -      -     -     -     - 

    
Total Central Hudson and CH 
Energy Group Assets $ 20,425   $ -    $ 20,425   $ -   $ -   $ 20,425 

                                        
As of December 31, 2013                                   
Derivative Contracts:                                   
  Central Hudson - electric $ 9,898   $ -    $ 9,898   $ -   $ -   $ 9,898 
  Central Hudson - gas   324     -      324     40     -     284 

    
Total Central Hudson and CH 
Energy Group Assets(1) $ 10,222   $ -    $ 10,222   $ 40   $ -   $ 10,182 

                                        
As of March 31, 2013                                   
Derivative Contracts:                                   
  Central Hudson - electric $ 5,822   $ -    $ 5,822   $ 609   $ -   $ 5,213 
  Central Hudson - gas1    3     -      3     3     -     - 
    Total Central Hudson Assets $ 5,825   $ -    $ 5,825   $ 612   $ -   $ 5,213 
  Griffith - heating oil $ 3   $ -    $ 3   $ -   $ -   $ 3 
    Total CH Energy Group Assets $ 5,828   $ -    $ 5,828   $ 612   $ -   $ 5,216 
                                        
                                        
                                        
                                        
                                        
                                        
                                        
              Net     
              Amount of     
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              Liabilities     
          Gross   Presented     
          Amounts   in the   Gross Amounts Not Offset in the 
      Gross    Offset in   Statement   Statement of Financial Position 
      Amounts of   the   of        Cash     
      Recognized   Financial   Financial   Financial   Collateral   Net 
Description Liabilities   Position   Position   Instruments   Received   Amount 
                                        
As of March 31, 2014                                   
Derivative Contracts:                                   
  Central Hudson - electric1  $ 127   $ -    $ 127   $ -   $ -   $ 127 
  Central Hudson - gas1    -     -      -     -     -     - 

    
Total Central Hudson and CH 
Energy Group Liabilities $ 127   $ -    $ 127   $ -   $ -   $ 127 

                                        
As of December 31, 2013                                   
Derivative Contracts:                                   
  Central Hudson - electric1  $ -   $ -    $ -   $ -   $ -   $ - 
  Central Hudson - gas   46     -      46     40     -     6 

    
Total Central Hudson and CH 
Energy Group Liabilities(1) $ 46   $ -    $ 46   $ 40   $ -   $ 6 

                                        
As of March 31, 2013                                   
Derivative Contracts:                                   
  Central Hudson - electric $ 609   $ -    $ 609   $ 609   $ -   $ - 
  Central Hudson - gas   4     -      4     3     -     1 
    Total Central Hudson Liabilities $ 613   $ -    $ 613   $ 612   $ -   $ 1 
  Griffith - heating oil1  $ -   $ -    $ -   $ -   $ -   $ - 
    Total CH Energy Group Liabilities $ 613   $ -    $ 613   $ 612   $ -   $ 1 
(1) Griffith heating oil derivatives have been excluded from the December 31, 2013 CH Energy Group balances above and are designated 

as held for sale under current accounting guidance. For further details see Note 5 - "Acquisitions, Divestitures and Investment." 

 
The fair value of CH Energy Group’s and Central Hudson’s derivative instruments and 
their location in the respective Balance Sheets are summarized in the table below, 
followed by a summarization of their effect on the respective Statements of Income. 
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Gross Fair Value of Derivative Instruments 
 
Derivative contracts are measured at fair value on a recurring basis.  As of March 31, 
2014, December 31, 2013 and March 31, 2013, CH Energy Group's and Central Hudson's 
derivative assets and liabilities by category and hierarchy level are as follows (In 
Thousands): 
                                  
        Quoted Prices in   Significant     
        Active Markets   Other   Significant  
        for Identical   Observable   Unobservable 
        Assets   Inputs   Inputs 
Asset or Liability Category   Fair Value   (Level 1)   (Level 2)   (Level 3) 
As of March 31, 2014(1)                         

  Assets:                         
    Derivative Contracts:                         
      Central Hudson - electric   $ 20,425   $ - $ -  $ 20,425 

        
Total CH Energy Group and Central 
Hudson Assets   $ 20,425   $ - $ -  $ 20,425 

                                                Liabilities:                         
    Derivative Contracts:                
      Central Hudson - electric1    $ (127)  $ - $ -  $ (127)

        
Total CH Energy Group and Central 
   Hudson Liabilities   $ (127)  $ - $ -  $ (127)

                      As of December 31, 2013(1),(2)                         

  Assets:                         
    Derivative Contracts:                         
      Central Hudson - electric   $ 9,898   $ - $ -  $ 9,898 
      Central Hudson - natural gas     324     324   -    - 

        
Total CH Energy Group and Central 
   Hudson Liabilities   $ 10,222   $ 324 $ -  $ 9,898 

                         Liabilities:                         
    Derivative Contracts:                
      Central Hudson - natural gas     (46)    (46)   -    - 

        
Total CH Energy Group and Central  
   Hudson Liabilities   $ (46)  $ (46) $ -  $ - 

                      As of March 31, 2013(1)                         

  Assets:                         
    Derivative Contracts:                
      Central Hudson - electric   $ 5,822  $ - $ -  $ 5,822 

      Central Hudson - natural gas 
1
    3    3   -    - 

        Total Central Hudson Assets   $ 5,825  $ 3 $ -  $ 5,822 
                           Griffith - heating oil   $ 3  $ 3 $ -  $ - 
        Total CH Energy Group Assets   $ 5,828  $ 6 $ -  $ 5,822 
                                    Liabilities:                         
    Derivative Contracts:                
      Central Hudson - electric   $ (609)  $ - $ -  $ (609)
      Central Hudson - natural gas     (4)    (4)   -    - 

        
Total CH Energy Group and Central 
Hudson Liabilities   $ (613)  $ (4) $ -  $ (609)

(1) Interest rate cap agreements are not shown in the above table because the FMV at each period stated was zero. 
(2) Derivative balances related to Griffith, which were designated as held for sale are excluded from December 31, 2013 CH Energy 

Group balances 
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Central Hudson obtains forward pricing for Level 3 derivatives from an independent third 
party provider of derivative pricing. Significant unobservable inputs utilized in their pricing 
model are bi-lateral contracts and projected activity of certain major participants. 
Generally, a change in any of the underlying assumptions would result in a positively 
correlated change in fair value measurement. 
 
The table listed below provides a reconciliation of the beginning and ending net balances 
for assets and liabilities measured at fair value and classified as Level 3 in the fair value 
hierarchy (In Thousands): 
                
      Three Months Ended 
      March 31, 
      2014   2013 
Balance at Beginning of Period   $ 9,898   $ (674) 
  Unrealized gains     10,400     5,887  
  Realized gains 1   38,877     5,119  
  Purchases 1 1  - 1   -  
  Issuances 1   - 1   -  
  Sales and settlements 1   (38,877) 1   (5,119) 
  Transfers in and/or out of Level 3   1  - 1   -  
Balance at End of Period   $ 20,298   $ 5,213  
                
The amount of total gains or losses for the period included in earnings          
  attributable to the change in unrealized gains or losses relating to 
  derivatives still held at end of period 1 $ - 1 $ -  
               
The company did not have any transfers into or out of Levels 1 or 2. 
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The Effect of Derivative Instruments on the Stateme nts of Income 
 

Realized gains and losses on Central Hudson’s derivative instruments are conveyed to 
or recovered from customers through PSC authorized deferral accounting mechanisms, 
with no material impact on cash flows, results of operations or liquidity.  Realized gains 
and losses on Central Hudson’s energy derivative instruments are reported as part of 
purchased electricity and fuel used in electric generation in Central Hudson’s Statement 
of Income as the corresponding amounts are either recovered from or returned to 
customers through electric cost adjustment clauses in revenues. 
 
For three months ended March 31, 2014, and 2013, neither CH Energy Group nor 
Central Hudson had derivatives designated as hedging instruments.  The following table 
summarizes the effects of CH Energy Group and Central Hudson derivatives on the 
statements of income (In Thousands):  
 

      

Amount of Gain (Loss) 
Recognized as 

Increase/(Decrease) in the 
Income Statement   

      
Three Months Ended March 

31,   
      2014    2013  Location of Gain (Loss) 
Central Hudson:               

   Electricity swap contracts   $ 30,876   $ 5,119 Regulatory (asset)/liability(1) 

   Natural gas swap contracts     1,081     (44) Regulatory (asset)/liability(1) 
   Total return swap contracts   1  -     - Other-net 
  Total Central Hudson   $ 31,957   $ 5,075   
                  
Griffith:               
   Heating oil call 
      option contracts   $ (2)  1  $  (2) Discontinued operations 
  Total Griffith   $ (2)  $ (2)  
                  
Total CH Energy Group   $ 31,955   $ 5,073   
                              
(1) Realized gains and losses on Central Hudson’s derivative instruments are conveyed to or recovered from customers through PSC 

authorized deferral accounting mechanisms, with an offset in revenue and on the balance sheet, and no impact on results of 
operations. 

 
In addition to the above, Griffith used weather derivative contracts to hedge the effect 
on earnings of significant variances in weather conditions from normal patterns, if such 
contracts can be obtained on reasonable terms.  Weather derivative contracts are 
accounted for in accordance with guidance specific to accounting for weather 
derivatives.  In the three months ended March 31, 2014, and March 31, 2013 
approximately $1.3 million and $0.2 million of expense was recorded to the income 
statement related to Griffith’s weather derivatives, respectively. These amounts are 
included in Income from discontinued operations in the CH Energy Group Consolidated 
Statement of Income for each period. 
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NOTE 15 – Other Fair Value Measurements 
 
Other Assets Recorded at Fair Value 

 
In addition to the derivatives reported at fair value discussed in Note 14 – “Accounting 
for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities”, CH Energy Group reports certain 
other assets at fair value in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. The following table 
summarizes the amount reported at fair value related to these assets as of March 31, 
2014, December 31, 2013 and March 31, 2013 (In Thousands):  
 
    Quoted Prices in     
    Active Markets  Significant  Significant 
    for Identical  Observable  Unobservable 
    Assets  Inputs  Inputs 

  Fair Value  (Level 1)  (Level 2)  (Level 3) 
As of March 31, 2014:                         
 Other investments  $ 5,874  $ 5,882  $ -  $ - 
As of December 31, 2013:              
  Other investments   $ 5,800   $ 5,800   $ -   $ - 

As of March 31, 2013:             
 Other investments  $ 1,636  $ 1,636  $   $  

 
As of March 31, 2014, December 31, 2013 and March 31, 2013 a portion of the trust 
assets for the funding of CH Energy Group’s Directors and Executives Deferred 
Compensation Plan and SERP were invested in mutual funds and money market 
accounts, which are measured at fair value on a recurring basis.  These investments 
are valued at quoted market prices in active markets and as such are Level 1 
investments as defined in the fair value hierarchy.  These amounts are included in the 
line titled “Other investments” within the Deferred Charges and Other Assets section of 
the CH Energy Group Consolidated and Central Hudson Balance Sheets.  
 
In the third quarter of 2011, CHEC recorded an impairment loss for the full value of its 
investment in CH-Community Wind.  An impairment analysis was performed and based 
on this analysis, the present value of the after-tax projected cash flows using a market 
participant’s expected return, is insufficient for CHEC to recover any of its investment.  
This analysis used significant unobservable inputs including a discount rate and 
projected cash flows for the entity and as such this is a Level 3 investment. As of March 
31, 2014, management believes the fair value of this investment remains at zero and is 
therefore appropriately reserved.  
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Other Fair Value Disclosure 
 

Financial instruments are recorded at carrying value in the financial statements, 
however, the fair value of these instruments is disclosed below in accordance with 
current accounting guidance related to financial instruments. 

 
The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each 
class of financial instruments for which it is practicable to estimate that value: 

 
Cash and Cash Equivalents:  Carrying amount (Level 1) 

 
Long-term Debt:  Quoted market prices for the same or similar issues (Level 2) 
Valuations were obtained for each issue using the observed Treasury market in 
conjunction with secondary market trading levels and recent new issuances of 
comparable companies. 

 
Notes Payable:  Carrying amount (Level 2) 
Due to the short-term nature (typically one month or less) of our Notes Payable 
borrowings, the carrying value is equivalent to the current FMV. 
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Long-term Debt Maturities and Fair Value - CH Energ y Group  
(Dollars in Thousands)                        
    
      Fixed Rate   Variable Rate Total Debt Outstanding 

Expected 
Maturity 
Date   Amount   

Estimated 
Effective 
Interest 

Rate   Amount 

Estimated 
Effective 
Interest 

Rate Amount 

Estimated 
Effective 
Interest 

Rate 
As of March 31, 2014:                         
  2014    $ 14,650    5.88  %   $ -  -  %         
  2015      1,230    6.86  %     -  -  %         
  2016      9,315    3.36  %     -  -  %         
  2017      34,406    6.13  %     -  -  %         
  2018      31,503    2.67  %     -  -  %         
  Thereafter 385,121    5.06  %     63,700  0.63  %         
     Total   $ 476,225    4.77  %   $ 63,700  0.63  % $ 539,925  4.48  % 
                                  
  Fair Value $ 516,800          $ 63,700      $ 580,500      
                                  
As of December 31, 2013:                         
  2014    $ 21,650    5.52  %   $ -  -  %         
  2015      1,230    6.86  %     -  -  %         
  2016      9,315    3.36  %     -  -  %         
  2017      34,406    6.13  %     -  -  %         
  2018      31,503    2.67  %     -  -  %         
  Thereafter 385,121    5.06  %     33,700  0.17  %         
     Total   $ 483,225    4.99  %   $ 33,700  0.17  % $ 516,925  4.68  % 
                                  
  Fair Value $ 508,673          $ 33,700      $ 542,373      
                                  
As of March 31, 2013:                         
  2013    $ 31,076    6.93  %   $ -  -  %         
  2014      21,650    5.50  %     -  -  %         
  2015      1,230    6.86  %     -  -  %         
  2016      9,315    3.36  %     -  -  %         
  2017      34,406    6.13  %     -  -  %         
  Thereafter 386,625    5.13  %     33,700  0.20  %         
     Total   $ 484,302    5.31  %   $ 33,700  0.20  % $ 518,002  5.02  % 
                                  
  Fair Value $ 554,724          $ 33,700      $ 588,424      
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Long-term Debt Maturities and Fair Value - Central Hudson  
(Dollars in Thousands)                             
    
      Fixed Rate   Variable Rate   Total Debt Outstanding 

Expected 
Maturity 
Date   Amount   

Estimated 
Effective 
Interest 

Rate   Amount   

Estimated 
Effective 
Interest 

Rate   Amount   

Estimated 
Effective 
Interest 

Rate 
As of March 31, 2014:                               
  2014    $ 7,000    4.85  %   $ -    -  %             
  2015      -    -  %     -    -  %             
  2016      8,000    2.78  %     -    -  %             
  2017      33,000    6.10  %     -    -  %             
  2018      30,000    2.46  %     -    -  %             
  Thereafter   371,250    4.74  %     63,700    0.63  %             
     Total   $ 449,250    4.66  %   $ 63,700    0.63  %   $ 512,950    4.36  % 
                                        
  Fair Value $ 486,753          $ 63,700          $ 550,453        
                                        
As of December 31, 2013:                               
  2014    $ 14,000    4.81  %   $ -    -  %             
  2015      -    -  %     -    -  %             
  2016      8,000    2.78  %     -    -  %             
  2017      33,000    6.10  %     -    -  %             
  2018      30,000    2.46  %     -    -  %             
  Thereafter   371,250    4.99  %     33,700    0.17  %             
     Total   $ 456,250    4.89  %   $ 33,700    0.17  %   $ 489,950    4.56  % 
                                        
  Fair Value $ 478,053          $ 33,700          $ 511,753        
                                        
As of March 31, 2013:                               
  2013    $ 30,000    6.93  %   $ -    -  %             
  2014      14,000    4.81  %     -    -  %             
  2015      -    -  %     -    -  %             
  2016      8,000    2.78  %     -    -  %             
  2017      33,000    6.10  %     -    -  %             
  Thereafter   371,250    5.06  %     33,700    0.20  %             
     Total   $ 456,250    5.22  %   $ 33,700    0.20  %   $ 489,950    4.92  % 
                                        
  Fair Value $ 521,706          $ 33,700          $ 555,406        
 
NOTE 16 – Related Party Transactions  
 
Thompson Hine LLP serves as outside counsel to CH Energy Group and Central 
Hudson.  One partner in that firm served as Assistant Secretary of each corporation 
during the year and effective on November 1, 2013 began serving as each corporation’s 
General Counsel and Corporate Secretary.  CH Energy Group paid legal fees to 
Thompson Hine LLP of $0.3 million and $0.4 million in the three months ended March 
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31, 2014 and 2013.  Central Hudson paid legal fees to Thompson Hine LLP of $0.3 
million and $0.2 million in the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013.  
 
CH Energy Group may provide services to, and receive services from, Fortis Inc, and 
other subsidiaries of Fortis Inc.  The costs of these services are reimbursed by the 
beneficiary company through accounts receivable and accounts payable, as necessary.  
The Company also incurs charges from Fortis for the recovery of general corporate 
expenses incurred by Fortis Inc or other affiliate.  Central Hudson also provides services 
to, and receives from, its parent company, CH Energy Group or other affiliate and incurs 
charges from CH Energy Group for the recovery of general corporate expenses 
incurred.  Central Hudson also incurs charges directly with Fortis Inc or other 
subsidiaries of Fortis Inc. These transactions are in the normal course of business and 
are recorded at their exchange amounts.  Related party transactions included in 
operating expenses and accounts receivable in the periods ended March 31, 2014, 
December 31, 2013 and March 31, 2013 are as follows (in Thousands): 
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NOTE 17 – Subsequent Events   
 
In addition to items disclosed in the footnotes, CH Energy Group has performed an 
evaluation of events subsequent to March 31, 2014 through the date the financial 
statements were issued and noted one additional item to disclose. 
 
On April 1, 2014, CH Energy Group’s Board of Directors approved a $5.0 million 
dividend payment to parent FortisUS that was paid on April 30, 2014. 
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INTERIM MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION and ANALYSIS of FIN ANCIAL 
CONDITION and RESULTS of OPERATIONS 
For Three Months Ended March 31, 2014  
 
This Management Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of 
Operations (“MD&A”) should be read in conjunction with the first quarter Financial 
Statements and the notes thereto and the MD&A for the year ended December 31, 
2013. 
 
Company: CH Energy Group is the holding company parent corporation of two principal, 
wholly owned subsidiaries, Central Hudson Gas & Electric Corporation (“Central 
Hudson”) and Central Hudson Enterprises Corporation (“CHEC”).  All of CH Energy 
Group’s common stock is indirectly owned by Fortis Inc. (“Fortis”), which is the largest 
investor-owned gas and electric distribution utility in Canada.  Central Hudson is a 
regulated electric and natural gas subsidiary.  CHEC, the parent company of CH Energy 
Group’s unregulated businesses and investments, has ownership interests in certain 
subsidiaries that are less than 100% owned.  On March 4, 2014, CHEC completed the 
sale of Griffith, its previously 100% owned subsidiary, to Star Gas Partners, L.P. 
 
Central Hudson purchases, sells at wholesale and retail, and distributes electricity and 
natural gas at retail in portions of New York State, to approximately 300,000 and 77,000 
electric and natural gas customers, respectively and is subject to regulation by the New 
York Public Service Commission (“PSC”). 
 
Mission and Strategy 
 
CH Energy Group: 
 
CH Energy Group's mission is to provide electricity and natural gas to an expanding 
customer base in a safe, reliable, courteous and affordable manner; to produce growing 
financial returns for shareholders; to foster a culture that encourages employees to 
reach their full potential; and to be a good corporate citizen. 
 
CH Energy Group’s strategy is to: 
 

• Invest primarily in electric and gas transmission and distribution; and 
 
• Maintain a financial profile that supports a credit rating in the “A” category. 

 
Central Hudson: 
 
Central Hudson's mission is to deliver electricity and natural gas to an expanding 
customer base in a safe, reliable, courteous and affordable manner; to produce growing 
financial returns for shareholders; to foster a culture that encourages employees to 
reach their full potential; and to be a good corporate citizen. 
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Central Hudson’s Strategy is to provide exceptional value to its customers by: 
 

• Practicing continuous improvement in everything we do;  
 
• Investing in T&D infrastructure to enhance reliability, improve customer 

satisfaction and reduce risk;  
 
• Moderating cost pressures that increase customer bill levels and commodity 

exposures that cause customer bill variability; and  
 
• Advocating on behalf of customers and other stakeholders. 

 
Business Overview 
 
CH Energy Group’s objective is to earn attractive risk adjusted returns over time for its 
parent company, Fortis.  
 
CH Energy Group - Regulated Operations - Central Hu dson  
Financial Highlights 
Period Ended March 31                     
                      
      Year To Date 
      2014    2013    Change 
Electricity Sales (GWh)   1,407 1,335 72 
Natural Gas Sales (PJ)   10 9 1 
                      
($millions)                     
Revenues     $ 246.8 $ 194.5 $ 52.3 
Energy Supply Costs       124.1   73.8   50.3 
Other Operating Expenses       80.2   81.5   (1.3)
Depreciation and amortization       10.7   10.0   0.7 
Other Income, net       1.7   1.8   (0.1)
Finance Charges       7.9   7.8   0.1 
Income Taxes       9.4   8.8   0.6 
Net income     $ 16.3 $ 14.4 $ 1.9 
 
Earnings: Earnings for the first quarter as compared to prior year increased by $1.9 
million primarily due to the recording of $2.2 million, net of tax, storm deferral 
adjustment in the first quarter of 2013 as a result of a PSC issued Order denying 
deferral of incremental electric storm restoration expenses related to Tropical Storm 
Irene and the 2011 October snowstorm.  The current quarter’s revenue and energy 
supply costs reflect colder weather and significantly higher commodity prices which 
impacted both revenues and purchased power costs, but did not have a direct impact 
on earnings due to the full deferral of commodity costs and the revenue decoupling 
mechanism (“RDM”).   
 
Electricity Sales & Natural Gas Sales: Year to date electricity and natural gas sales 
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were higher than the prior year primarily as a result of colder temperatures in the 2014 
winter heating season.   These increases did not materially impact Central Hudson’s 
revenue as a result of its RDM structure. 
 
Depreciation and Amortization:  Depreciation for the first quarter increased compared to 
2013 due to the continued investment in Central Hudson’s electric and gas 
infrastructure in accordance with its capital expenditure program. 
 
Other Income, net:  Other income, net was relatively unchanged compared to the prior 
year.  
 
Finance Charges:  Finance charges (interest charges) were relatively unchanged 
compared to the prior year. 
  
Corporate Taxes:  Corporate taxes increased as compared to 2013 due to higher pre-
tax book income.  
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Central Hudson Revenues - Electric  
Period Ended March 31 
                        
($millions)   Year To Date  
    2014    2013    Change  
Revenues with Matching Expense Offsets: (1)                   

  Recovery of commodity purchases   $ 83.4   $ 49.1   $ 34.3 
  Sales to others for resale     1.8     1.3     0.5 
  Other revenues with matching offsets     24.7     22.8     1.9 
    Subtotal     109.9     73.2     36.7 
Revenues Impacting Earnings:              
  Customer sales     67.2     63.3     3.9 
  RDM and other regulatory mechanisms     (3.6)    (0.6)    (3.0)
  Other revenues     0.9     2.3     (1.4)
    Subtotal     64.5     65.0     (0.5)
Total Electric Revenues    $ 174.4   $ 138.2   $ 36.2 
                        
(1) Revenues with matching offsets do not affect earnings since they offset related costs, the most 

significant being energy cost adjustment revenues, which provide for the recovery of purchased 
electricity costs.  Other related costs include authorized business expenses recovered through 
rates and the cost of special programs authorized by the PSC and funded with certain available 
credits.  Changes in revenues from electric sales to other entities for resale also do not affect 
earnings since any related profits or losses are returned or charged, respectively, to customers.   

                        

Central Hudson Revenues - Natural Gas  

Period Ended March 31 
                    
($millions)   Year To Date  
    2014    2013    Change  
Revenues with Matching Expense Offsets: (1)                   

  Recovery of commodity purchases   $ 30.6   $ 16.5   $ 14.1 
  Sales to others for resale     8.3     7.2     1.1 
  Other revenues with matching offsets     8.0     8.2     (0.2)
    Subtotal     46.9     31.9     15.0 
Revenues Impacting Earnings:              
  Customer sales     27.2     23.8     3.4 
  RDM and other regulatory mechanisms     (2.3)    (0.7)    (1.6)
  Other revenues     0.6     1.3     (0.7)
    Subtotal     25.5     24.4     1.1 
Total Natural Gas Revenues    $ 72.4   $ 56.3   $ 16.1 
                        
(1) Revenues with matching offsets do not affect earnings since they offset related costs, the most 

significant being energy cost adjustment revenues, which provide for the recovery of purchased 
natural gas costs.  Other related costs include authorized business expenses recovered through 
rates and the cost of special programs authorized by the PSC and funded with certain available 
credits.  For natural gas sales to other entities for resale, 85% of such profits are returned to 
customers. 

�
Central Hudson’s revenues consist of two major categories: those that offset specific 
expenses in the current period (matching revenues), and those that impact earnings.  
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Matching revenues recover Central Hudson’s actual costs for particular expenses (most 
notably, purchased electricity and purchased natural gas, pensions and OPEBs, the 
NYS Temporary State Assessment, and NYS energy efficiency programs).  Any 
difference between these revenues and the actual expenses incurred is deferred for 
future recovery from or refund to customers and therefore does not impact earnings. 
 
Electric Revenue: The increase in electric revenues was due to higher recovery of 
commodity purchases which were primarily driven by higher wholesale prices.�
 
Gas Revenue:  The increase in gas revenue was due to higher recovery of commodity 
purchases which were primarily driven by higher wholesale prices.   
 
Central Hudson Operating Expenses  
Period Ended March 31                   
              
($millions)   Year To Date  
        2014    2013    Change  
Expenses Currently Matched to Revenues: (1)                   

  Purchased electricity   $ 85.2    $ 50.4   $ 34.8 
  Purchased natural gas     38.9      23.7     15.2 
  Pension & OPEB     8.0      7.9     0.1 
  NYS energy programs     11.6      9.3     2.3 
  Other matched expenses     13.1      13.8     (0.7)
    Subtotal     156.8      105.1     51.7 
Other Expense Variations:               
  Tree trimming      3.5      4.5     (1.0)
  Property and school taxes(2)     11.0      10.8     0.2 
  Weather related service restoration (3)     0.4      4.5     (4.1)
  Other expenses     43.3      40.4     2.9 
    Subtotal     58.2      60.2     (2.0)
Total Operating Expenses    $ 215.0    $ 165.3   $ 49.7 
                   (1) Includes expenses that, in accordance with the 2010 Rate Order, are adjusted in the current period to equal the revenues 

earned for the applicable expenses and the differences are deferred. This continues per the 2013 Joint Petition.  
(2) In accordance with the 2010 Rate Order, Central Hudson is authorized to defer for the benefit of or recovery from customers 

90% of any difference between actual property tax expense and the amounts provided in rates for each Rate Year. The 
Company portion is limited to 10% and a maximum of $0.8 million per Rate Year. This continues per the 2013 Joint Petition. 

(3) Weather related service restoration for the quarter ended March 31, 2013 includes approximately $3.7 million of incremental 
electric storm restoration expense related to Tropical Storm Irene and the October 2011 snowstorm that was denied deferral by 
the PSC in April 2013. 

  

 
Operating Expenses:  Operating expenses increased quarter over quarter primarily as a 
result of recognizing the higher level of commodity costs that were billed to customers in 
the current quarter, but given that commodity costs are fully passed through to 
customers, there was no impact to earnings.  
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CH Energy Group - Non-regulated and Holding Company  Operations  
Financial Highlights 
                      
                      
Period Ended March 31                     
                      
      Year To Date 
($millions)     2014    2013    Change  
Loss from Continuing Operations       (0.7)   (0.3)   (0.4)
Income from Discontinued Operations       7.7   4.8   2.9 
                      
                      
 
Income from Discontinued Operations:  The increase in quarter over quarter earnings is 
the result of a $4.7 million, net of tax gain on sale of Griffith, which closed on March 4, 
2014.  2014 earnings would have been even higher had Griffith been owned for the 
entire quarter.  The increase was partially reduced by higher NYS taxes driven by the 
inclusion of the taxable gain on the sale of Griffith in the CH Energy Group combined 
NYS income tax return. 
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Financial Position  
 
The following table outlines the significant changes in the Balance Sheet of Central 
Hudson as of March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013: 
 
CH Energy Group – Regulated – Central Hudson 
Significant Changes in the Balance Sheets 
as of March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 
 
($millions)           

Balance Sheet Account    
Increase 

(Decrease)   Explanation 
Accounts Receivable   $ 42.7   Increase is due to colder weather during the first three months 

of 2014 and higher commodity prices. 

Regulatory assets - Current     12.6   Increase primarily due to actual costs for purchased gas 
exceeding billings to customers.  

Fair value of derivative 
instruments, (net) 

    10.1   Increase due to unrealized mark-to-market gains related to 
open electric derivative contracts. 

Regulatory assets - long term     5.5   Increase primarily due to an increase in the environmental 
remediation accruals for the Eltings and Newburgh sites, 
partially reduced by a decrease in Central Hudson's pension 
liability. 

Long term debt, (net)     23.0   Increase due to the issuance of debt. 

Notes payable     18.0   Increase due to short term borrowing for working capital needs 
due to the seasonality of the business and high commodity 
prices. 

Accounts payable     (5.9)  Decrease primarily due to a decrease in purchased electric 
costs as a result of commodity hedges. 

Customer advances and 
deposits 

    (8.5)  Decrease is due to the seasonality of the business and higher 
commodity prices. 

Regulatory liabilities - current     11.9   Increase primarily due to deferred unrealized gains on 
derivatives and gas RDM deferrals resulting from higher use 
per customer in 2014. 

Accrued income and other 
taxes 

    5.2   Increase due to federal income taxes due on 2014 earnings as 
Central Hudson fully utilized its federal NOL in 2013. 

Regulatory liabilities - long 
term 

    20.2   Increase primarily due to the following: 
 - income taxes refundable through future rates 
 - over collection of costs related to NYS energy  
   efficiency programs 
 - deferral of the impact of the change in the NYS  
   corporate income tax rate effective January 1,  
   2016 
 - increase due to unrealized mark-to-market gains  
   related to open electric derivative contracts 

Accrued Environmental 
 remediation costs 

    8.4   Increase primarily due to accrual of estimated costs 
associated with remediation at the Eltings and Newburgh sites. 

Accrued pension costs     (16.1)  Decrease primarily due the pension plan contribution made in 
January. 
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Liquidity And Capital Resources  
              
The following table outlines the summary of cash flow: 
              

CH Energy Group - Regulated, Non-regulated and Hold ing Company  

Summary of Cash Flow  
Period Ended March 31, 
              
($millions)   Year to Date  
    2014   2013 
Cash, beginning of period 1 $ 20.6 $ 30.5 
Cash provided by (used in)              
   Operating Activities     (35.7)   (8.9)
   Investing Activities     76.2   (28.4)
   Financing Activities     28.0   28.0 
Cash, end of period      89.1   21.2 
Dividends paid on Common Stock - CH Energy Group      (5.0)   (8.3)
Dividends paid to parent - Central Hudson      (5.0)   (5.0)
 
Operating Activities:  Operating activities generated less cash due primarily to the 
impact of significantly colder weather on Central Hudson’s accounts receivable and 
other working capital needs. 
 
Investing Activities:  Cash provided by investing activities was higher predominately due 
to (1) proceeds from the sale of Griffith Energy Services, Inc. at the CH Energy Group 
level as well as (2) a decrease in investments for Central Hudson’s electric and natural 
gas transmission and distribution systems primarily due to the unfavorable impact of 
weather on the ability to perform capital work.  
 
Financing Activities:  Financing activities remained relatively unchanged compared to 
the prior year.   
 
Financing Activities 
 
Liquidity:  A total of $240 million is available on CH Energy Group’s and Central 
Hudson’s committed credit facilities. 
 
Committed Credit Facilities  
                        
($millions)                       
          March 31, 2014      
    Credit Limit    Outstanding    Available   Maturity 
CH Energy Group (unregulated)   $ 100   $ -   $ 100   October 19, 2015
Central Hudson (regulated)     150     10     140   October 19, 2016
Total   $ 250   $ 10   $ 240     

 
Credit Rating:  To ensure continued access to capital at reasonable cost, Central 



  

- 58 - 
 

Hudson endeavors to maintain investment grade credit ratings on its senior unsecured 
debt.  Details as follows: 
 
Central Hudson’s Bond Ratings 
 
  March 31, 2014   December 31, 2013  

  Rating   Outlook   Rating   Outlook  
S&P  A  Stable  A  Stable 
Moody’s  A2  Stable  A3  Stable 
Fitch  A  Stable  A  Stable 
 
On November 8, 2013, Moody’s placed the ratings of most regulated utilities and utility 
holding companies in the United States, including that of Central Hudson, on review for 
upgrade due to a generally more favorable view of the relative credit supportiveness of 
the US regulatory environment.  On January 30, 2014, Moody’s concluded their review 
of the company’s ratings and upgraded Central Hudson to a rating of A2 and reaffirmed 
its stable outlook1.   
 
CH Energy Group’s capital structure follows: 
 
CH Energy Group's Capital Structure  
                      
    March 31, 2014    December 31, 2013  
    $millions    %   $millions   % 
Long-term Debt   $ 539.9   47.7   $ 516.9   47.8 
Short-term Debt     10.0   0.9     -   - 
Common Equity     583.0   51.5     564.7   52.2 
Total   $ 1,132.9   100.0   $ 1,081.6   100.0 

 
                      

Central Hudson's Capital Structure  
                      
    March 31, 2014    December 31, 2013  
    $millions    %   $millions   % 
Long-term Debt   $ 513.0   48.9   $ 490.0   49.1 
Short-term Debt 1   18.0   1.7     -   - 
Common Equity     518.4   49.4     507.2   50.9 
Total   $ 1,049.4   100.0   $ 997.2   100.0 

 
Central Hudson's customer rates reflect a capital structure - excluding short-term debt - 
with 48% common equity.  Central Hudson is currently managing its financing to 
maintain its common equity at no less than 48%.  Central Hudson may change its long 
term capitalization targets to match the capital structure reflected in future customer 
rates. 

                                                 
1 These ratings reflect only the views of the rating agency issuing the rating, are not recommendations to buy, sell, or hold securities 
of Central Hudson and may be subject to revision or withdrawal at any time by the rating agency issuing the rating.  Each rating 
should be evaluated independently of any other rating. 
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In March 2014, Central Hudson issued $30 million of 10-year debt with a floating 
interest rate of 3 month LIBOR plus 1%.  Central Hudson used the proceeds from the 
sale of the notes for refunding maturing long term debt, working capital, and for general 
corporate purposes.  To mitigate the potential cash flow impact from unexpected 
increases in short-term interest rates, Central Hudson purchased a 3-year interest rate 
cap based on 3 month LIBOR with a notional amount equal to the outstanding principal 
amount of this issuance.  Central Hudson would receive a payout if the LIBOR rate 
exceeds 4.0% at the start of each quarterly interest period during the term of the interest 
rate cap.  See Note 14 – “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities” 
for fair value disclosures related to this instrument.   
 
Capital Stock and Dividends:  Other than the issuance by Central Hudson of $30 million 
in long-term debt and the maturity of $7 million in debt, there have been no changes in 
Central Hudson’s capital structure in 2014.  See the Summary of Cash Flow table for 
details on dividends. 
 
Summary of Changes in Accounting Policies from Dece mber 31, 2013 
 
Regulation:  There were no material changes to Central Hudson’s regulatory accounting 
policies in the first quarter of 2014. 
 
Critical Accounting Estimates:  There were no material changes to CH Energy Group’s 
or Central Hudson’s critical accounting estimates in the first quarter of 2014. 
 
GAAP:  There were no material changes to CH Energy Group’s or Central Hudson’s 
accounting policies in the first quarter of 2014. 
 
Business Outlook and Summary of Significant Busines s Risks  
 
Outlook 
 
There were no material changes to the Company’s mission and strategy during the first 
quarter of 2014.  
 
Opportunities and Risks 
 
The only material changes to the Company’s risk factors through the first quarter of 
2014 was the elimination of the risks factors entitled, “Griffith’s customer count, sales 
volumes and margins” and removal of references to Griffith from the risk factor entitled 
“Storms and other events beyond the Companies’ control”.  
 
Interest Rate Risk:  There is no material exposure to interest rate risk due to Central 
Hudson’s deferral authority for its variable rate interest, interest rate caps and minimal 
outstanding short-term debt. 
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Regulatory Proceedings  
 
On April 2, 2014 the PSC issued an Order authorizing deferral of $9.965 million of the 
Sandy incremental storm restoration expenses, with carrying charges, and affirmed their 
previous Irene and October 2011 snowstorm PSC Orders denying Central Hudson’s 
rehearing petitions.  There were no impacts on Central Hudson’s earnings in the current 
period as a result of these orders since these amounts were booked in the periods 
incurred.  
 
In February 2014, the PSC issued an Order requiring risk assessments and remediation 
of NYS gas facilities.  The Order requires all NYS gas utilities to perform comprehensive 
risk assessments of their gas facilities within six months to identify conditions similar to 
those found in a natural gas explosion that occurred in New York in 2011.  An action 
plan to mitigate any issues identified in the risk assessment must be developed and 
submitted to the PSC Gas Safety Staff within 30 days of the risk assessment and 
utilities are required to provide monthly progress to the Gas Safety Staff until the risk 
assessment and any necessary remedial work is completed.  Management believes 
these costs will qualify for deferral treatment. 

 
No prediction can be made regarding the outcome of this matter or the potential impacts 
on Central Hudson at this time. 
 
Other Proceedings:  There were no significant developments in other proceedings in the 
first quarter of 2014. 
 
FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS 
 
Statements included in this quarterly report, which are not historical in nature, are 
intended to be “forward-looking statements.”  Forward-looking statements may be 
identified by words such as “anticipates,” “intends,”  “estimates,” “believes,” “projects,” 
“expects,” “plans,” “assumes,” “seeks,” and other similar words and expressions.  CH 
Energy Group is subject to risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to 
differ materially from those indicated in the forward-looking statements.  The risks and 
uncertainties include, but are not limited to:  deviations from normal seasonal 
temperatures and storm activity, changes in energy and commodity prices, availability of 
energy supplies, changes in interest rates, poor operating performance, legislative and 
regulatory developments, the outcome of litigations, and the resolution of current and 
future environmental issues.  Additional information concerning risks and uncertainties 
may be found in the Management Discussion & Analysis section of CH Energy Group’s 
quarterly and annual financial reports.  These reports are available in the Financial 
Information section of website of CH Energy Group, at www.CHEnergyGroup.com.  CH 
Energy Group undertakes no obligation to update publicly any forward-looking 
statements, whether as a result of new information, future events, or otherwise. 


